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PART 1 - NOTIFICATION

ITEM 1. Significant Partics

List the full names and business and residential addresses, as applicable, for the following persons:
(a) the issuer's directors;

Lesley Elliott

Chairman and Chief Executive OfTicer
1830 S. Ocean Drive, Suite 3003
Hallandale, FL 33009

(954) 369-5710

Residential Address:
1830 S. Ocean Drive, #3603
Hallandale Beach, FL 33009

Seth Elliott

President and Director

1830 S. Ocean Drive, Suite 3003
Hallandale, FL. 33009

(954) 369-5710

Residential Address:
1830 8. Ocean Drive, #3003
Hallandale Beach, FL 33009

Nick Stagliano, Director
214 Sullivan Street, Suite 2C
New York, New York 10012
(212) 475-6270

Residential Address:
1931 Berkley Road
Norristown, PA 19403



(b) the issuer's officers;

Lesley Elliott

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
1830 S. Ocean Drive, Suite 3003
Hallandale, FL 33009

(954) 369-5710

Residential Address:

1830 S. Ocean Drive, #3003

Hallandale Beach, FL 33009

Seth Elliott

President and Director

830 S. Ocean Drive, Suite 3003

Hallandale, FL 33009

{954) 369-5710

Residential Address:

1830 S. Ocean Drive, #3003

Hallandale Beach, FL 33009
{c) the issuer's general partner

Not Applicable

{d) record owners of 5 percent or more of any class of the issuer's securities:

As of this date, Mrs. Lesley Elliott, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company,
owns 4,164,000 Common Sharcs of the Company (80% of the total issucd and outstanding).

As of this date, Mr. Seth Elliou, President and Director of the Company. owns 1,041,000
Common Shares of the Company (20% of the total issued and outstanding).

Mrs, Elliott and Mr. Elliott are husband and wifec.
{e) beneficial owners of 5 percent or more of any class of the issuer's securities:
Lesley Elliott and Seth Elliott (See Item 1{d) above).
(F} promoters of the issuer:
Lesley Elliott and Scth Elliott (See Item 1{d} above).
() affiliates of the issuer:
Lesley Elliott

Seth Elliont
Nick Stagliano



{h) counsel to the issucr with respect to the proposed offering:

Cohen & Czamik LLP, 140 Broadway, 36" Floor, New York, New York 10005, Attention:
Stephen J. Czamik, Esq.

(i) cach underwriter with respect to the proposed offering.

There is no underwriter. Issuer is selling securities.
(i) any underwriter's directors:

Not Applicable. There is no underwriter. Issuer is selling securities.
{k} the underwriter's officers:

Not Applicable. There is no underwriter. Issuer is selling securities.
(1) the underwriter's general partners:

Not Applicable. There is no underwriter. 1ssucr is sclling securitics.
{m) counsel to the underwriter:

Not Applicable. There is no underwriter. Issuer is selling securitics.

ITEM 2, Application of Rule 262

(a) State whether any of the persons identified in response (o [tem 1 are subject 10 any of the
disqualification provisions set forth in Rule 262.

No persons identified in response to Item | are subject to any of the disqualification
provisions sct forth in Rule 262.

{b) [fany such person is subject to these provisions, provide a full deseription including pertinent
names, dates and other details, as well as whether or not an application has been made
pursuant to rule 262 for a waiver of such disqualification and whether or not such application
has been granted or denied.

Not Applicable. No persons are subject to any of the disqualification provisions set forth in
Rule 262.

ITEM J. Affiliate Sales

If any part of the proposed offering involves the resale of sceurities by affiliates of the issucr, confirm that
the following description docs not apply to the issuer. '



The issuer has not had a net income from operations of the character in which the issuer intends
10 engage for at least one of its two last fiscal vears.

Not Applicable. -
ITEM 4, Jurisdictions in Which Securities are to be Offered.

{a) Ldist the jurisdictions in which the securities are to be offered by underwriters, dealers or
salespersons.

Not Applicable. Issucr will sell the Securities.

(b) List the jurisdictions in which the securities are to be offered other than by underwriters,
dealers or salespersons and state the method by which such securitics are to be offered.

issuer will market and sell the shares (o investors. The issuer intends 1o rely upon exemptions
pursuant to state law where the securities are offered. The issuer will, prior to any offer in a
particular state, review such applicable state law to either register the oflering in such state or
rely upon an applicable exemption.

ITEMS.  Unregistered Securities Issued or Sold within one year.

(a) As to any unregistered securities issued by the issuer or any of its predecessors or affiliated
issuers within one year of the iling of this Form | -A state:

(1) the name of such issucr;
Verge Productions, Inc.
(2) the title and amount of securities issued;
(a) 4,164,000 Common Shares issued to Lestey Elliott pursnant to the initial formation
of the Company as an LLC and subscquent conversion 1o a C corporation.
(b) 1,041,000 Common Shares issued to Seth Elliott pursuant to the mitial formation of
the Company as an LL.C and subsequent conversion to a C corporation.

No securities have been sold.

(3) the aggregate offering price or other consideration for which they were issued and basis
for computing the amount thereol;

The securitics were issued pursuant to initial formation of the Company. Both parties
contributed $1,500 in initiat formation expenses and received securitics pursuant to the
Company’s formation. These securities became Common Shares upon the October 6,
2008 conversion of the Company from a limited liability company to a C corporation,

(4} the names and identities of the persons to whom the securities were issued.

()} 4,164.600 Common Shares issued to Lesley Elliott pursuant to the initial formation
of the Company as an LL.C and subsequent conversion to a C corporation.




(a) 1,041,000 Common Shares issued to Seth Elliott pursuant to the initial formation of
the Company as an ELC and subsequent conversion to a C corporation.

(b) As 10 any unregistered securities of the issuer or any of its predecessors or affiliated issuers

which were sold within one year prior to the filing of this Form [-A by or for the account of
any person who at the time was a director, officcr. promoter or principal security holder of
the issuer of such securities, or was an underwriter of any securities of such issuer, furnish the
information specified in subsections (1) through (4) of paragraph (a).

Not Applicable

(c) Indicate the section of the Securities Act or Commission rule or regulation relied upon for

ITEM 6.

exemption from the registration requirements of such Act and state briefly the facts relied
upon for such exemption.

The transactions described above were exempt from registration pursuant to Section 4(2)
of the Sccurities Act of 1933 by reason that: (i) no commissions were paid for the
tssuance of security; {if) the issuance of such sccurity by the Company did not involve a
"public offering"; (iii) the purchasers of each security were sophisticated and accredited
investors; {iv) the offerings were not a "public offering" as defined in Section 4(2) due to
the insubstantial numbers of persons involved in such sales, size of the offering. manner
of the offering and number of securities offered; and (v) in addition, cach purchaser had
the necessary investment intent as required by Section 4(2) since cach purchaser agreed
to and received security bearing a legend stating that such sceurity is restricted pursuant
to Rule 144 of the 1933 Securities Act. (These restrictions ensure that this security would
not be immediately redistributed into the market and therefore not be part of a "public
offering”),

Other Present or Proposed Offerings

State whether or not the issuer or any of its aftiliates is currently offering or contemplating the offering of
any securitics in addition to those covered by this Form 1-A. If so. describe fully the present or proposed

offering.

ITEM 7.

No. Not Applicable.

Marketing Arrangements

{(a) Briefly describe any arrangement known Lo the issuer or 10 any person named in response to

Item 1 above, or to any selling security holder in the offering covered by this Form 1-A for
any of the following purposes:

(1) To limit or restrict the sale of other securities of the same class as those (o be offered for

the period of distribution:

Not Applicable.

(2) Fo stabilize the market for any of the securitics 1o be oftered.



Not Applicable.

(3) For withholding Commissions, or otherwise to hold each underwriter or dealer
responsible for the distribution or its participation.

Not Applicable.

(4) Identify any underwriter that intends 1o confirm sales to any accounts over which it
exercises discretionary authority and include an estimate of the amount of sccurities so
intended to be confirmed.

Not Applicable.

ITEM 8. Relationship with Issuer of Experts Named in Offering Statement
If any expert named in the offering statement as having prepared or certified any part thereol was
employed for such purpose on a contingent basis or, at the time of such preparation or certificatton or at
any time thereafier, had a material interest in the issuer or any of its parents or subsidiaries or was
connected with the issuer or any of its subsidiaries as a promoter, underwriter, voting trustee, director,
officer or employee furnish a bricf statement of the nature of such contingent basis, interest or connection.

Not Applicablc. There are no experts named in the offering statement.
ITEMSY, - Use of a Soticitation of Interest Document
Indicate whether or not a publication authorized by Rule 254 was used prior to the filing of this
notification. If so, indicate the date(s) of publication and of the last communication with prospective

purchasers.

Not Applicable. No such written documents or broadeast scripts were used prior 1o the filing
ol this notification,



PART 1l - OFFERING CIRCULAR
MODEL A

COVER PAGE

VERGE PRODUCTIONS, INC.

(Exact name of issuer as specified in its charter)

Type of sceurities offered: Common Stock

Maximum number of securitics offered: 5,000,000 Common Shares

Minimum number of securities ofTered: 1,000,000 Common Shares

Price per security: $1.00

Total proceeds: If maximum soid: $5,000,000 [f minimum sold: §1,000,000

(See Questions 9 and 10)

Is a commissioned selling agent selling the securities in this offering? [ ] Yes [X] No

If yes, what percent is commission of price to public?  Not Applicable |

[s there other compensation to selling agent(s)? [ ] Yes [X] No

Is there 2 finder’s fee or similar payment to any person? { ] Yes [X] No (Sec Question No. 22)

Is there an escrow of proceeds until minimum is obtained? {X| Yes | | No {See Question No. 26)

Is this offering limited to members of a special group, such as employees of the Company or individuals?
[ 1 Yes | X] No (See Question Na, 25)

Is transfer of the securities restricted? | | Yes [X] No {See Question No. 25)

INVESTMENT IN SMALL BUSINESSES INVOLVES A HIGH DEGREE OF RISK, AND
INVESTORS SHOULD NOT INVEST ANY FUNDS IN THIS OFFERING UNLESS THEY CAN
AFFORD TO LOSE THEIR ENTIRE INVESTMENT. SEE QUESTION NO. 2 FOR THE RISK
FACTORS THAT MANAGEMENT BELIEVES PRESENT THE MOST SUBSTANTIAL RISKS TO
AN INVESTOR IN THIS OFFERING.

IN MAKING AN INVESTMENT DECISION INVESTORS MUST RELY ON THEIR OWN
EXAMINATION OF THE ISSUER AND THE TERMS OF THE OFFERING, INCLUDING THE
MERITS AND RISKS INVOLVED. THESE SECURITIES HAVE NOT BEEN RECOMMENDED OR
APPROVED BY ANY FEDERAL OR STATE SECURITIES COMMISSION OR REGULATORY
AUTHORITY. FURTHERMORE, THESE AUTHORITIES HAVE NOT PASSED UPON THE
ACCURACY OR ADEQUACY OF THIS DOCUMENT. ANY REPRESENTATION TO THE
CONTRARY IS A CRIMINAL OFFENSE.

THE U.5. SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION DOES NOT PASS UPON THE MERITS
OF ANY. SECURITIES OFFERED OR THE TERMS OF THE OFFERING., NOR DOELS [T PASS
UPON THE ACCURACY OR COMPLETENESS OF ANY OFFERING CiRCULAR OR SELLING
LITERATURE. THESE SECURITIES ARE OFFERED UNDER AN EXEMPTION FROM




REGIS'I'RA'!‘ION; HOWEVER, THE COMMISSION HAS NO’E’ MADE AN INDEPENDENT
DETERMINATION THAT THESE SECURITIES ARE EXEMPT FROM REGISTRATION.

This Company:

[ ] Has never conducted operations.

[X] Is in the development stage.

[ 11s currently conducting operations.

[ 1 Has shown a profit in the last fiscal vear.
[ ] Other (Specify):

This offering has been registered for offer and sale in the following states:

This offering has not yet been registered for offer and sale in any slate. The issuer intends to rely upon

excmptions pursuant 1o state law where the securities arc offered. The issuer will, prior to any offer ina
particular state, review such applicable state law to cither register the offering in such state or rely upon
an applicable exemption.




l. Exact corporate name:

State and date of incorporation:

Street address of principal office:

Company Telephone Number:

Fiscal ycar:

THE COMPANY

VERGE PRODUCTIONS, INC.

Florida; February t8, 2008 {converted from LLC to C
Corporation on October 6, 2008)

1830 S. Ocean Drive., Suite 3003
Hallandale, FL. 33009
(954) 369-5710

December 31

Person(s) lo contact at Company with respect to offering:

Seth EHiott



RISK FACTORS

2. List in the order of importance the factors which the Company considers 1o be the most substantial
risks to an investor in this offering in view of all facts and circumstances or which otherwise make the
offering one of high risk or speculative (i. e., those factors which constitute the greatest threat that the
investment will be lost in whole or in part, or not provide an adequate return).

A. Lack of Operating History, History of Losses. The Company has only been in existence since
February 18, 2008. During its short life, the Company has had minimal operations. As shown in
the Company’s financial statements accompanying its annual report, the Company has incurred
net losses of $31,928 since inception. The Company does not expect to achieve profitability for
several quarters following the close of the Offering, and there can be no assurance that it will be
profitable thereafter, or that the Company will sustain any such profitability if achicved.

B. Lack of Film Production Experience. Other than Nick Stagliano, a Member of the Board of
Directors of the Company, the Company’s managers do not have a history of experience in film
production. Lack of experience in this arena could prove to have material adverse effect on the
Company's business, financiai condition or results of operations.

C. Dependence on Key Personnel: Lesley Elliott and Seth Elliott are the only Officers and
emplovees of the Company at this time. Mrs. Elliott, Mr. Elliott or Mr. Nick Stagliano (Director
of the Company) could fall victim to some kind of accident which would render any or all of
them incapable of serving the Company. The Company's success is substantially dependent upon
these key individuals. The loss of the services of any of these three individuals could have a
material adverse effect on the Company's business, financial condition or resulis of operations.
The Company does not have an employment contract with and does not hold key-man life
insurance and accident insurance policies on Mrs. Elliott, Mr. Elliott or Mr. Stagliano. Even if it
did, there is no assurance that any of these individuals could be replaced by qualified personnel.

D. Risks of Motion Picture Production: The production of motion pictures involves substantiat risk.
The projected costs of film production are often difticult to calculate and may be increased by
rcasons or factors beyond the Company’s control (including. among others, labor disputes,
malfunction of equipment, illness or imcapacity of key personnei, weather conditions) that require
-more capital than initially projected in order to complete production. Local, regional and national
and/ or international competition may further alTect the availability of the means of production
including, but not limited to, camera crews, sound technicians. visual effects technicians. studio
availability, location availability and productions facilitics. All funds allocated to a film project
may be fost if production is ceased or abandoned and not adequately covered (or otherwise
adequately insurable) by insurance. Completion bonds, while available to offset the gencral risks
associated with non-completion through providing additional funds, may not be adequate to cover
significant cost overruns. We cannot predict the effects of these [actors wilh certainty, and any
these factors could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and
financial condition.

E. Risk of Motion Picture Disiribution: The suecess of the Company’s distribution activitics
depends, in part, on certain factors beyond the Company’s control. Distribution success is
dependant on obtaining favorablc agreements for access to distribution channels, volatility of
advertising costs. and technological and materials of production costs as well as overall demand
in accordance with public tastes and availability of alternate forms of entertainment.
Additionally. the success of a motion piciure or television program in ancillary markets, such as
home video and online sales, is often directly related to its performance in theaters or its




H.

television ratings and therefore poor box office results or poor television ratings may negatively
affect future revenue streams.

Risks of Motion Pictwre Market Acceptance:  The production of motion pictures involves
substantial risk. Each motion picture or television program is an individual artistic work,
Unpredictable audience reactions primarily determine commercial success. Generally, the
popularity of motion pictures depends on many factors including the critical acclaim they receive,
the format and channel of their initial release, the actors, the genre and specific subject matter.
The commercial success further depends upon the quality and acceptance of motion pictures or
programs that competitors relcase at or ncar the same time. We cannot predict the effects of these
factors with certainty, any of which factors could have a material adverse effect on our business,
results of operations and financial condition.

Competition: Many of the Company's current and potential competitors have longer operating
histories and may have significantly greater financial, distribution, sales, marketing and other
resources, as well as greater name recognition and a larger distribution base, than the Company.
As a result, they may be able to devote greater resources to the development, promotion, sale and
support of their productions than the Company. There can be no assurance that the Company will
be able 10 compete successfully against current or future competitors or that competitive
pressures faced by the Company will not materially adversely affect its business, operating results
or financial condition.

Uncertainty of Future Operating Results: The Company does not expect (o achieve profitability
for the next several quarters, and there can be no assurance that it will be profitable thereafter, or
that the Company will sustain any such profitability if achicved.

Conirof by Existing Stockholders: 1mmediately after the closing of this Offering, control of the
Company will rest with the existing Officers of the Company. In the event that the minimum
securitics are soltd, approximately 67% of the then outstanding Common Shares witl be owned by
Mrs. Elliott. Only upon the sale of more than 3.120.000 Common Shares will Mrs. Elliott cease
o contrel the Company. Nonetheless, even in the event that the maximum securities are sold,
Mrs. LElliott and Mr. Elliott combined will own approximately 51% of the Commaon Shares then
outstanding. Thus, the current Officers. Lesley Elliott and Seth Elliott, will be able to control
substantially ail matters requiring approval by the stockholders of the Company. including the
clection of all directors and approval of significant corporate transactions. This could make it
impossible (or other stockholders to influence the alfairs of the Company.

Mrs. Elliott, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company: is also the controfling
sharehoider of the Company: Mrs. Elliott, Chairman and Chief Exccutive Officer of the
Company is also the controlling shareholder of the Company and she may vote her shares subject
to her opinien and preference and without consideration of her role as officer and director of the
Company and the fiduciary duties that such role entails. Thus in any vote of the sharcholders,
Mrs. Elliott may vote in her best interest and not in the best intercst of the other sharcholders.
Thus, Mrs. Elliott controls vole of the Company and may not, at certain times, consider any
investors (or shareholders) interests. Furthermore, Mrs. Elliout is the spouse of Seth Ellictt, who
controls twenty percent of the Company (see Risk Factor K below).

Mr. Efliou, President and Divector of the Compeany is also o rwenty peveent shareholder of the
Compeany. Mr. Elliol, President and Director of the Company is also a twenty percent
sharcholder of the Company and he may vote his shares subject ta his opinion and preference and
without consideration of his role as officer and director of the Company and the fiduciary duties



|
|
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Note:
|

that such role entails. Thus.in any vote of the sharcholders, Mr. Elliott may vote in his best
interest and not in the best interest of the other shareholders. Furthermore, Mr. Elliott is the
spouse of Lesley Elliott, who is the controlling shareholder of the Company (see Risk Factor J
above).

No Prior Trading Market for Common Stock; Potential Volatility of Stock Price: No prior market
has existed for the Company’s securities and the Company does not anticipate that any such
market will develop subsequent to this offering. A purchaser must be fully aware of the long-term
nature of an investment in the Company. The shares are being offered and sold pursuant to
Regulation A promulgated by the Securitics and Exchange Commission under the Securitics Act
of 1933, as amended (the “Act”) and available exemptions under applicable state taws.
Purchasers may need to bear the economic risk of the investment for an indefinite period of time.
Ownership of the shares must be considered a long-term, non-liquid investment.

[n addition to the above risks, businesses are often subject to risks not foreseen or fully
appreciated by management. In reviewing this Offering Circular potential investors should keep
in mind other possible risks that could be important.

BUSINESS AND PROPERTIES
With respect to the business of the Company and its properties:

(a) Describe in detail whar business the Company does and proposes to do, including what
product or goods are or will be produced or services that are or will be rendered.

Verge Productions, Inc. (the “Company™) was formed to produce, invest in and distribute
independent {ilms, television programming and related content. The Company intends to act
as a producer or co-producer on 2-10 properties in the thirty-six months following this
OfTering. :

The Company plans to produce and distribute films that are independent of major studios and
markcted with smaller budgets than those used by major stedios. We intend to establish both
national and international channels for distribution of films to both theaters and on television
and to build an entertainment library. Management believes that distribution of films and
programming previously unreleased or in limited release may generate recurring revenues for
the Company through distributing such properties directly, to retailers, to online buyers, and
to television.

[0 addition to producing filins, the Company plans to acquire additional properties to sell to
the marketplace whenever the opportunity presents itself. One way to find additional filins
cither already finished or in various stages of production is to attend the worldwide film
markets such as Berlin, Cannes. Toronto, Sundance, Tribeca and The American Film Market
and seek out other producers with matcrial that is in need to additional funding to clesc a
deal, or with a finished [ilm that needs representation to distribuwtors, Additionally, the
Company intends to make this part of our business model known on its website and through
word of mouth advertising with various {ilm professionals (agents, other producers, managers
and entertainment attorneys).

Once a specific film project is targeted, the Company will then aticmpt to acquire that project
through arms length negotiation with the project’s producer or authorized representative.



(b)

Management will evaluate each project based on its quality of production, name talent
(actors, directors etc.) involved, as well as subject matter to determine if it perceives a
legitimate source of additional revenue for the Company.

Describe Aow these products or services are to be produced or rendered and how and when
the Company intends to carry out its activities. If the Company plans to offer a new
product(s). statc the present stage of development, including whether or not a working
prototype(s) is in existence. Indicate if completion of development of the product would
require a material amount of the resources of the Company, and the estimated amount. [f the
Company is or is expected to be dependent upon one or a limited number of suppliers for
essential raw materials, energy or other items, describe. Describe any major existing supply
contracts.

In acting as a producer, the Company anticipates acquiring the rights to an original
screenplay. Afler receiving an acceptable screenplay a producer "develops the script”, which
consists of assembling the director and the principal actors and preparing the [ilm budget.
Thereafier, the producer obtains financing for the film. The Company intends to concentrate
on properties with production costs ranging from $750,000 to $3,000,000. We do not
currently have any projects in development.

Methods used by producers o secure production (inancing vary from project to project,
including capital provided by publicly or privately raised pools of investment capital or
money provided by “majors™ or "mini-majors" or from banks that specifically seck to
participate in film financing. An alternate method of feature film financing involves the pre-
sale by the producer of certain or all of the films ancillary rights which could include
domestic and foreign theatrical rights, domestic cable television, network television, and.
svndicated television and DVD/video cassette. In many cases, the Company anticipates that
it will provide a material amount of necessary financing directly.

Once financing is complete, the film enters the “pre-production” phase, which lasts anywhere
from six to twelve wecks during which time locations are seccured, casting comes 1o
completion and the shooting schedule drawn. *Principal photography” follows, spamning four
1o ten weeks, during which time the actual shooting of the film occurs. The *post-production’
stage follows, which often spans scveral months. During post-production the film is edited
and music and sound cffects arc added resulting in a film negative from which prints arc
made for release by distributors to theaters.

The Company plans to produce and distribute films that are independent of major studios and
marketed with smaller budgets than those used by major studios. We intend to establish both
national and international channels for distribution of films to both theaters and on television
and to build an entertainment library. The Company belicves that distribution of films and
programming previously unreleased or limited release will generate recurring revenues by
distributing filin directly, to retailers. to online buyers, and 1o television and supplement the
further expansion of the Company’s originally produced films and programming.

We intend to focus on producing antistic films that emphasize complex story-lines and
character development while curtailing overall production costs associated with feature-film
cinematography. This approach to film production, should enable us to produce compelling,
commercially viable films. We will seek o distribute these [ilms to theatrical and ancillary
markets both domestically and internationally. Production budgets for similarly situated
films in the industry {including those previously produced by Nick Stagliano. a Director of




the Company, "The 24th Day" and "The Florentine") have gencrally ranged between
$500,000 and $2 million.

Describe the industry in which the Company is selling or expects 1o sell its products or
services and, where applicable, any recognized trends within that industry. Describe that part
of the industry and the geographic area in which the business competes or will compete.
Indicate whether competition is or is expected to be by price, service, or other basis. Indicate
(by attached table if appropriate) the current or anticipated prices or price ranges for the
Company’s products or services, or the formula for determining prices, and how thesc prices
compare with those of competitors” products or services, including a description of any
variations in product or service features. Name the principal competitors that the Company
has or expects to have in its arca of competition.

Indicate the relative size and financial and market strengths of the Company’s competitors in
the area of competition in which the Company is or will be operating, State why the
Company believes it can effectively compete with these and other companies in its area of
competition.

Motion picture production and distribution arc highly competitive businesses. The Company
will need to successfully compete with the major studios, numerous independent motion
picture and television production companies for the acquisition of literary and film properties,
the services of performing artists, directors, producers and other creative and technical
personncei and production financing. Uhimately, our motion pictures will compete with other
production and distribution companies for audiences and exhibition outlets.

Major studios have historically dominated the motion picture industry. The term major
studios is generally regarded in the entertainment industry to mean: Universal Pictures
(*Universal™), Wamer Bros.; Twenticth Century Fox; Sony Pictures Entertainment (“Sony™);
Paramount Pictures; and The Walt Disncy Company (“Disney™). Competitors less diversified
than the major studios and considered “mini-majors™ include Dreamworks SKG, New Line
Cinema, Miramax, Lionsgate and The Weinstein Company.  Smaller independent companies
that we will also compete with include 1FC Films. Greenestreet Films and Peace Arch
Enteftainment, among others.

Furthermore, we compete with alternative forms of entertainment, such as live productions,
sporting events. outdoor recreation and other cultural activities. The success of any of our
motion pictures is therefore dependent not only on the quality and acceptance of our own
products, bul also on the quality and acceplance of other competing motion pictures and
aliernative forms of entertainment.

We believe that we can compete with other entrants in this ficld for several key reasons:

Financial Approach - OQur main criteria for evaluating our projects and proceeding into
production will be that we have received various tax refunds/rebates, subsidics. co-production
funds, or other benetits so that we have approximately 50% of a films budget covered from
outside sources. [n certain cases. this will include the use of foreign companies, which will
enable qualifying film projects to use foreign “soft money™. Such subsidics allow the
Company 1o significantly mitigaie the linancial risk of each picture because these government
funds are “nonrecoupable™. Additionally, we will attempt to receive sales estimates from at
feast 3 distribution companies that validate the potential revenue of each film before we
proceed to production.  We belicve that our disciplined acquisition and production models



will minimize the financial risks often associated with film acquisition, production and
distribution by procuring co-production agreements, pre-seliing international distribution
rights, emphasizing efficient production schedules and entering into agreements with top
talent attracted in part by the films we seek to develop and produce. While such strategies
may limit the potential revenues of certain projects, we believe that this approach will create
operating and financial stability and allow us to reserve capital to pursue additional
opportunities.

Sharcholder Base — It is our hope that, at the completion of this Offering. the Company will
have a large and diverse shareholder base. By communicating with these shareholders on a
regular basis, and wtilizing our internet presence to allow these shareholders to leverage their
own contact base, we hope to achieve a broader word of mouth about and incentive to attend
individual film releases than would be the norm in the industry,

Key Board Member - Nick Stagliano, a member of our Board of Directors, has a proven track
record as a lead producer and is a veteran in several aspects of the industry including
productions, distribution and financing, particularly for independent fils. Mr. Stagliano’s
career as a lead producer of independent film is most highlighted by The Florentine and The
24th Day as well as the made for television holiday film, Home of Angels. We anticipate
utilizing Mr. Stagliano’s expertise and conlacl base to help achieve success.

Note:  Because this Offering Circular focuses primarily on details concerning the Company

rather than the industry in which the Company operates or will operate, potential
investors may wish to conduct their own separate investigation of the Company’s
industry to obtain broader insight in assessing the Company’s prospects.

{d) Describe specifically the marketing strategics the Company is employing or will employ in

penetrating its market or in developing a new market. Set forth in response to Question 4
below the timing and size of the results of this effort that will be necessary in order for the
Company to be profitable. Indicate how and by whom its products or services are or will be
marketed (such as by advertising. personal contact by sales representatives, etc.). how its
marketing structure operates or will operate and the basis of its marketing approach,
including any market studics. Name any customers that account for, or based upon existing
orders will account for a major portion (20% or more) of the Company s sales. Describe any
major existing sales contracts.

The Company plans to market itsell” and its future properties in order to foster a growing
reputation onto the world entertainment stage. These marketing efforts will include:

Festival Attendance - The Company intends to send key personne! 1o major film festivals and
strategically significant markets around the globe. We believe this will prove essential 1o our
long term plan of operations for the Company in its plan 10 emphasize “pre-sale” output deals
with international distributors as well as setting the stage for the Company's introduction as
its own international sales and distribution division. The key festival/fmarkets arc: Sundance,
Berlin. Cannes, Toronto and the American Film Market. The Company anticipates festival
attendance will be $25,000 — $50,000 annually.

Trade Advertisements - The Company intends to advertise its {uture slate of productions in
important industry trade magazines including: Varicty, Hollywood Reporter, Screen
[nternational and Filmmaker. These costs are cstimated to be approximately $3.000 per vear.



Industry Associations - The Company intends to market itself to the industry by joining
industry organizations such as: The Independent Feature Project and the Producer’s Guild of
America.

Website - The Company will launch its own website that will highlight current and future
productions. The website will also link the viewer to specific web pages set up on a project
by project basis to better introduce each film to domestic and international audiences and
eventually participate in direct merchandizing. As of the date of this offering statement. the
Company has not spent any funds on its website but it plans to spend approximately $2,500 1o
development a basic site immediately upon Closing of the Minimum Offering and thereafter
to spend approximately $10,000 - $15,000 annually for website development and web
marketing.

Distributor Marketing — We intend to market individual Gilm productions through the
engagement of motion picture distributors on a picture-by-picture basis. Motion Picture
distributors are responsible for the direct prints and advertising budgets and services of cach
film. Generally, working directly with the Company, a film distributor will develop a
specific publicity campaign for the film. Once the campaign is agreed upon, the distributor
advances lunds (called P & A funds for “prints and advertising™), which are usually an agreed
upon amount of at least 20%-50% of the film’s production budget. Posters and One-Sheets
are produced, as well as the trailer of the film, which the distributor sends out far in advance
of the film’s release to generate significant interest. In collaboration with the film’s publicist,
the distributor and producer arrange a wide varicty of events and promotions to market the
film, including press and celebrity screenings, parties, and promotional product sponsored
gatherings. The internet is also crucial in the marketing of the film and the unit publicist
along with the producer and distributor begin as early as possible to create the “buzz” through
various film and cntertainment related websites, as well as specific sites targeted for the core
audience.

Promotional Partnerships - The success of independent films can be significantly increased
by enhancing the degree of consumer awareness for both theatrical and home video release.
Promotional partncrships with well recognized consumer products and services companics
provide substantial consumer awarcness gencrated for independent films in exchange for
providing the consumer products or services company with the opportunity to associate with
additional niches of popular culture. We intend to vigorously pursue such relationships in
order 1o bath supplement its production budgets and to generate publicity.

The promotional partnerships that the Company will atempt to develop will be on a project-
by-project basis and include what is known as “product placement™. where a consumer
product company will either pay to have their product appear in the Company’s film, or
provide the product free of charge to be used in the film, or a combination of both. Each film
demands a variety of products which might be used in this manner. Some examples of
products which the Company plans to pursue include alcoholic beverages. vehicles, food,
clothing and jewelry.

(e} State the backlog of written firm orders for products and/or services as of a recent date

{within the last 80 days) and compare it with the backlog of a vear ago from that date.
) P g h g
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(h)

The Company has no backlog of orders for any product or services. The Company has been
in existence for less than one year. In that time, the Company has had no backlog of orders
for any products or services.

State the number of the Company’s present employees and the number of employees it
anticipates it will have within the next 12 months. Also, indicate the number by type of
employce (i.e., clerical, operations, administrative, ctc.) the Company will use, whether or not
any of them are subject to collective bargaining agreements and the expiration date(s) of any
collective bargaining agreement(s). If the Company’s employees are on strike, or have been
in the past three years, or are threatening to strike, describe the dispute. Indicate any
supplemental benefits or incentive arrangements the Company has or will have with its
employces.

As of the date of this Offering. the Company has two employees: Lesley Elliott (Chief
Executive Officer) and Seth Elliott (President). The Company anticipates that, following the
Closing of the Offering, it will add 1-4 employees. Of these employees, | will be
administrative/clerical in nature and the additional employees will be acquisition and
development exccutives.

No employees are subject to collective bargaining agreements. No employees have been (or
are threatening 10) strike. The Company has no supplemental benefits or incentive
arrangements currently {or anticipated) with any employees.

Describe generally the principal propertics (such as real estate, plant and equipment, patents,
ctc.) that the Company owns, indicating also what propertics it lcases and a summary of the
terms under those leases, including the amount of payments, expiration dates and the terms of
any renewal options. [ndicate what properties the Company intends to acquire in the
immediate future, the cost of such acquisitions and the sources of financing it expects to use
in obtaining these propertics, whether by purchase, leasc ar otherwise,

The Company doces not own any real property (real estate, plant and equipment, patents,
trademarks, etc.). The Company leases interim ofTice space on a month-to-month basis [rom
one of its principal oiticers. The Company pays $500/month for these facilities. There are
no written agreements in place for the use and payments of these facilitics.

The Company belicves that its current facilities will be accurate through the close of the
Minimum Offering. Therealier, the Company anticipates that it will lease office space in an
“office suite” arrangement in South Florida. The Company is aware that such space is
available and expects to secure such space for less than $1,500 per month.

indicate the extent to which the Company’s operations depend or arc expected to depend
upon patents, capyrights, trade secrets. know-how or other proprietary information and the
steps undertaken to secure and protect this intellectual property, including any use of
contidentiality agreements, covenants-not-to-compete and the like. Sammarize the principal
terms and expiration dates of any significant license agreements. Indicate the amounts
expended by the Company for research and development during the last fiscal year, the
amount expected 1o be spent this year and what percentage of revenues rescarch and
development expenditures were for the last fiscal year.

The Company’s operations are not currently dependent upon the possession of any
inteltectual property or proprictary information.  As such no license agreements or similar
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(a)

contracts exist in this regard. The Company has expended no funds on research and
development. In the future, the Company expects to expend between $15,000 and $75.000
on research and development of quality inteltectual property, not inclusive of the costs 1o
actually purchase screenplays from writers.

As the Company expands its production efforts, the primary intellectual property component
will be ownership of the screenplay for cach property. As such, the Company will engage in
a rigorous legal process to secure comprehensive rights to any screenplays it acquires.
Additionally, in the event that the Company serves as co-producer or invests in a film
production, we will be centain that the intellectual property ownership in these instances has
been properly secured.

If the Company’s business, products, or propertics arc subject to material regulation

«(including environmental regulation) by federal, state, or local governmental agencies,

indicate the nature and exient of regulation and its effects or potential effects upon the
Company.

The Company is s not subject to material regulation.

Siate the names of any subsidiaries of the Company, their business purposes and ownership,
and indicate which are included in the Financial Statements attached hereto. I not included,
or if included but not consolidated, piease explain.

The Company has no subsidiaries.

Summarize the material events in the development of the Company (including any material
mergers or acquisitions) during the past five years, or for whatever lesser period the Company
has been in existence. Discuss any pending or anticipated mergers, acquisitions, spin-offs or
recapitalizations. If the Company has recently undergone a stock split. stock dividend or
recapitalization in anticipation of this offering, deseribe (and adjust historical per share
figures elsewhere in this Offering Circular accordingly).

The Company has only been in existence since February 18, 2008. Material events to date
are:

February 18, 2008 Formation of the Company

March 26. 2008 Completion of Company’s business planning process
April 18, 2008 Completion of Industry Analysis

August 20, 2008 Nick Stagliano joins Board of Dircclors

October 6, 2008 Company converts from LL.C to C Corporation

If the Company was not profitable during its last fiscal year, list below in chronological order
the events which in management’s opinion must or should occur or the milestones which in
management’s opinion the Company must or should reach in order for the Company to
become profitable, and indicate the expected manner of occurrence or the expected method
by which the Company will achieve the milestones.



Months

After
Event/ Manner of Occurrence / Minintum
Milestone Method of Achievement Close
Purchase first original screenplay | Company representatives find available screenplays | 3
; via word of mouth; discussions with agents, writers,
| ctc; attendance at festivals and industry gatherings
| Develop first film budget Imernal expertise used, including knowledge of 4
venues and locations
f Secure “soft” commitment from | Interaction with relevant talent agencics; use 6
Director and Actor(s) for first contacts to speak directly with potential Directors
film and Actors
| Purchase second original Company representatives find available screenplays | 7
| screenplay via word of mouth; discussions with agents, writers,
elc: attendance at festivals and industry gatherings
Obtain additional project Target and market industry professionals with filtm | 7
. financing for first film equity investment experience; utilize non-traditional
’ sources of [inancing
Obtain distribution agrecments Market to domestic and international distribution 7
' for first filin houses with assembled film package
Develop second film budget Internal expertise used. including knowledge of 8
venes and locations
Shoot first film Inernal expertise plus hired outside expertise to 9
manage production process during shooting
Post —produciion of first film Ilired professionals engage in edining, music and 10
sound design
Secure “soft™ commitment from | Interaction with relevant talent agencics: use 10
Director and Actor(s) for second | contacts to speak directly with potential Directors
film and Actors: utilize “buzz™ from {irst film-wrap in
process
Obain additional projec Target and market industry professionals with ilm ] 11
! tinancing for second film cquity investiment experience: utilize non-traditional
sources of financing; leverage successiul
completion of first film in this process
Obtain distribution agreements Market to domestic and international distribution 11
for second film houscs with assembled film package
Release first film Via distribution agreements; thereafter pursue video | 12
and afiermarket opportunitics
Post —production of second film | Hired professionals engage in editing, music and 14
sound design
Release second film Via distribution agreements; thereafter pursue video { 16

and altermarkel opportunities




(b) State the prabable consequences to the Company of delays in achicving cach of the events or
milestones within the above time schedule, and particularly the effect of any delays upon the
Company’s liquidity in view ol the Company’s then anticipated level of operating costs. (See
Question Nos. 11 and 12)

Event Affect on Operations and Net Income

Purchase first original screenplay | Any delay in the purchase of this first screenplay will, of
course, delay the ongoing production of the Company’s first
film. The Company will not generate substantial revenue (with
the exception of potential producer fee revenues) until after the
release of its first film, Thus, any delay in purchasing this [irst
screenplay will substantially alfect the timeframe by which the
Company generates any potential net income.

Develop first film budgel Any delay in determining a production budget of the lirst film
will delay preduction. The Company will not generate
substantial revenue (with the exception of potential producer
fee revenues) until after the release of its first film. Thus, any
delay developing this budget will substantially affect the
timeframe by which the Company generates any potential net

income.
Secure “soft” commitment from | Any delay in obtaining soft commitments makes obtaining
Director and Actor(s) for first additional financing and distribution agreements more difficult.
film In the event that the film is not “assembled™ in this time frame

substantial delays may occur. In order to address these delays
the Company may need to (a) provide more direct financing if
available (b} cheose talent that is not as marketable as destred
or (¢) delay the ongoing production process. Because the
Company will not generate substantial revenue (with the
exception of potential producer fee revenues) until after the
refeasc of its first film, any production delays will substantially
affect the timeframe by which the Company gencrates any
potential net income.

Purchase second original Any delay in the purchase of the second screenplay will. of
screenplay course, delay the production of the second film. Fhere is no
assurance that the Company s first {or for that matier second)
film will prove successful. Accordingly. delays in the
production of the sccond film may further delay the potential
for the Company to generate net income.

Obtain additional project In the event that the Company is unable 10 obtain the targeted
financing for first film financing in the scven months following Closing, the
production of the Company’s first film could be delayed.
Because the Company will not generate substantial revenue
(with the exception of potential producer fee revenues) until
alter the release of its first film, any production delays will
substantially affect the timeframe by which the Company
generates any potential net income. The Company may need to
spend additional funds directly in order 1o facilitate a timely
production. However, direct funds spent on the Company’s
tirst production could mean fewer (or no) funds available for
tuture productions.




Event

Affect on Operations and Net Income

Obtain distribution agreements
for first film

Although distribution agreements are imporiant to final release,
a delay in obtaining these agreements is not as critical as many
other components of the production process. Nonetheless,
delays in obtaining distribution agreement could impact the
Company’s ability to obtain additional financing (sec above).

Develop second film budget

Any delay in determining a production budget of the second
film will delay its production. Therce is no assurance that the
Company’s first (or for that matter second) film will prove
successful. Accordingly, delays in the production of the
second film may further delay the potential for the Company to
generate net income.

Shoot first film

Any delays in the actual shooting of the film, will of course
delay its final release. Because the Company will not gencrate
substantial revenue (with the exception of potential producer
fee revenues) until after the release of its first film, any
shooting delays will substantially affect the timeframe by
which the Company generates any potential net income.

Post —production of first film

Any delays in the post-production process, will of course delay
its Ainal release. -Because the Company will not generate
substantial revenue (with the exception of potential producer
fee revenues) until after the release of its first tilm, any post-
production delavs will substantially affect the timeframe by
which the Company generates any potential net income.

Secure “soft” commitment from
Director and Actor(s) for sccond
hilm

Any delay in obtaining “soft” commitments from talent will
result in delay of the second film®s production. In the cvent
that the Company’s first film is unsuccessful, it will rely upon
its second production to achieve net income. Accordingly. any
delay in production of the second film would then have a
negative affect on the Company’s potentiat net income.

Obtain additional project
financing for second film

In the event that the Company is unable to obtain the targeied
financing in the stated time frame, the Company’s second film
could be detayved. In the event that the Company’s first film is
unsuccessful, it will rely upon its second production to achieve
net income. Accordingly, any delay in production ol the
second {ifm would then have a negative aftect on the
Company’s potential net income.

Obtain distribution agreements
tor second {ilm

Although distribution agreements are important to final release.
a delay in obtaining these agreements is not as critical as many
other components of the production process. Nonctheless,
delays in obtaining distribution agreement could impact the
Company’s ability to obtain additional financing (sce above).

Release first film

Because the Company will not generate substantial revenuc
{with the exception of potential producer fee revenucs) until
afier the release of its first film, any delays of the release will
substantially aifect the timeframe by which the Company
gencrales any potential net income.




Event Affect on Operations and Net Income

Post —production of second film | Any delays in the post-production process will delay the film’s
final release. In the event that the Company’s first film is
unsuccessful, it will rely upon its second fiim to generate
income. Accordingly, any delay in the release date of the
second film may delay the Company’s ability to generate net
income.

Release second film In the event that the Company’s first film is unsuccessful, it
will rely upon its sccond film to generate income.
Accordingly, any delay in the release date of the second film
may delay the Company’s ability to generate net income.

Although the event analysis set forth above is accurate. investors should be aware that the focus of that
analysis is on the achievement by the Company of profitability and generation of Net Income.

The Company’s cost of operating is currently less than $75,000 annually, as it is currently in development
stage. Following the Closing of the Minimum Offering. the Company anticipates obtaining at least
$937,500 in net proceeds {See Section 9 - Use of Proceeds below). Upon Closing the Company
anticipates that is monthly operational simply to maintain the business, will not exceed $20,000. Thus,
the primary expenditures will be on (a) sccuring intellectual property (b) producing films and (c)
marketing. Thus. although delays in the milestones set forth above have the potential to delay prospective
profitability, such delays should not result in liquidity crises that call into question the Company’s ability
lo operate as a gotng concern.

Note:  After reviewing the nature and timing of cach event or milestone. potential investors should
reflect upon whether achievement of each within the cstimated time frame is realistic and should
assess the consequences of delays or lailure of achievement in making an invesiment decision,




OFFERING PRICE FACTORS

Il the securities offered are common stock, or are exercisable for or convertible into common stock, the
following factors may be relevant to the price at which the securities are being offered.

5.

What were net, after-tax carnings for the last fiscal year?

The Company has not yet experienced a full fiscal year. For the period from inception (February
18, 2008) to December 31, 2008, the relevant data is:

Total $(4,928) (($0.001) per Share)

If the Company had profits, show offering price as a multiple of earnings. Adjust to reflect for
any slock splits or recapitalizations, and use conversion or exercise price in lieu of offering price,
if applicable.

“The Company has had no profits from Inception to the date of this Offering.

(a) What is the net tangible book value of the Company?

($1,928) (($.0004) per Sharc)

If the net tangible book value per share is substantially less than this offering (or exercise or
conversion) price per share, please explain the reasons for the variation.

(b)

The offering price is substantially higher than the book value per share. The Company is in
the development stage in an industry that does not require fixed assets in order to achicve
success. Accordingly, book value is likely to remain low (or negative) until such time that
the Company achieves profits. Because the primary assets that the Company will acquire or
develop are intellectual property, it is likely that the book value will understate the actual
value of the Company in the future.

The management of the Company has determined the Offering Price in its sole discretion.
The management of the Company believes that if the Company is successful in its business
model. investors at the offering price will receive a reasonable return on investment. The
management believes that this is an appropriate price for the Offering, however there is no
formulaic basis for the arbitrary Offering Price.

State the dates on which the Company sold or otherwise issued securitics during the last 12
months. the amount of such securities sold, the number of persons to whom they were sold,
and relationship of such persons to the Company at the time ol sale, the price at which were
sold and, if not sold for cash, a concise description of the consideration. (Exclude bank debt.)

None. The Company has not sold securitics in the last 12 months.

{a) What percentage of the outstanding shares of the Company will the investors in this offering

have? Assume exercise of outstanding options, warrants or rights and conversion of
convertible securities, if the respective exercise or conversion prices are at or less than the



offering price. Also assume exercisc of any options. warrants or rights and conversions of any
convertible securities offered in this offering.)

I the maximum is sold: 48.99%
If the minimum is sold: 16.11%

(b) What post-offering valuc is management implicitly attributing to the entire Company by
establishing the price per security set forth on the cover page (or exercise or conversion price
il common stock is not offered)? (Total outstanding shares afier offering times offering price,
or exercise or conversion price it common stock is not offered.)

If the maximum is sold: $10,205,000*
If the minimum is sold: $§ 6,205,000 *

* These values assume that the Company”s capital structure would be changed to reflect any conversions of
outstanding convertible securitics and any use of eutstanding securitics as pavinent in the exercise of outstanding
opitons. warsants or rights included in the calevlation. The type and amount of vonvertible or other securitics thus
climinated would be: 0. ‘These values also assume an increasce in cash in the Company by the amount of any cash
payments that would be made upon cash exercise of options. warrants or rights included in the culculations. The
amount of such cash would be: $0.

Note:  After reviewing the above, potential investors should consider whether or not the offering price
(or exercise or conversion price, if applicable} for the securities is appropriate at the present stage
of the Company’s development.




USE OF PROCEEDS

9.
{a) The following table sets forth the use of the proceeds from this offering:
Minimum Maximum
Offering % * % % Offering %

Amount Sold $1,000,000 $2,000,000 43,000,000 $4,000,000 45,000,000
Less Offering Expenses:

Commissions and Fees $ - 0.00% 5 - 0.00% 5 - 0.00% $ - 0.00% § - 0.00%

Legal & Accounting 4 35500 355% § 35500 1.78% $ 35500 1.18% S 35500 0.89% 5§ 35500 0.71%

Copying B Advertising $ 22000 220% $ 37000 1.85% $ 45000 1.50% 5 60,000 1.50% § 80,000 1.60%)

Travel 5 5000 050% $ 5000 025% $ 10,000 033% § 10000 0.25% 5 10000 0.20%
Net Proceeds From Offering § 937,500 93.75% $ 1,922,500 96,13% $ 2,909,500 96.498% 5 3,804,500 97.36% $ 4.874500 97.49%
USE OF MET PROCEEDS
Production $ 500,000 50.00% S 1,175000 S5875% 51,830,000 61.00% $ 2,500.000 62.50% §$ 3,200,000 64.00%
Purchase of Screenplays $ 100,000 10.00% $ 200,000 10.00% $ 300,000 10.00% S 400,000 10.00% $ S00,000 10.00%|
Officers Salaries $ 125000 1250% $ 175000 £.75% $ 175000 583% § 200008 S5.00% 5 200,000 4.0096J
Employee Compensation $ 35000 350% 5 35000 1.7%% 5 50000 3.00% 5 155000 3.88% & 235000 4.70%
Publicity and Advertising S 40,000 400% $ 80,000 4D00% 5 169000 563% S 225000 S5.63% 5 290,000 5.80%
Working Capitat $ 55000 SS0% $  B6600  4.33% $ 130,600 4.35% § 199,600 4.99% S 234500 4.69%|
Festival Attendance $ 25000 250% 5 50,000 250% S 50,000 1.67% 5 50,000  1.25% S S0,000  1.00%
Research and Development S 15000 150% $  S0,000 250X S 75,000 250% & 75000 1.88% $ 75,000 1.0.513%’6'
tatellectual Property Maintenance $ 15000 150% S 36000 1.80% 5 S0000 167% 5 50000 1.25% S5 50000 1
Website and inernet Development S 10000 100% $ 15000 0.75% $ 15000 050% S 15000 0.38% 5 15000 0.30%;
Repayment of Advances 3 9500 095% $ 94900 050X S 9,900 0.33% 5 9900 025% 5 9,900 0.20%
Trade Advertiserments $ 5000 050% S 5000 0.25% § 5000 D.17% 5 5,000 0.13% S 5000 0.10%
Industry Association Fees S 3000 030% 5 5000 025% S 10000 0.33% $ 10000 0.25% & 10,000 0.20%

Production — These expenditures represent the Company’s core business model of
producing, and investing in independent films, television programming and related
content. The Company anticipates providing. on average. 25%-33% of a project’s budget
dircetly. Accordingly, the Company has planned for direct production of two films if the
Minimum Offering is raised and ten fils if the Maximum Offering is raised. In the
cvent that the Company is able to secure [inancing such that it is required to invest less
than the average budget in direct projects, the Company anticipates utilizing these
production funds for co-production ventures or purchases of other entertainment assets
(as described herein). In the event that production costs exceed budgets and/or additional
financing on projects is not available, the Company will likely utilize working capital
funds and reduce total advertising and publicity expenditures in order to address
shortfalls. The Company does not anticipate spending less than these amounts on
production as described herein.

Screenplay Purchases — The Company anticipates purchasing two original screenplays if
the Minimum QOfTering is raised and ten original screenplays in the event that the
Maximum Offering is raised. We believe that we can purchasc screenplays, including the
cost of oplions on original works, for $35.000 - $50,000 per screenplay. In the event that
screenplays average more than $50,000. the Company will utilize working capital funds
1o first ensure at least two screenplays are purchased and produced and thercafier may
choose 10 purchase fewer than 10 screenplays at the Maximum Offering if necessary. In
the event that screenplays average less than $50.000. the Company will deploy funds
allocated for screenplay purchase, at the discretion of management into one or more of
the following categories:  (a) purchasing additional screenplays (b) adding to the
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Production budget (¢) increasing the budget for Festival Attendance or (d) increasing the
expenditures on Publicity and Advertising,

Officers Salaries — Prior to January 2009, the Chief Executive Officer and the President
of the Company have taken no salarics. As of January 2009, the Chief Exccutive Officer
receives an annual salary of $100,000 and the President receives an annual salary of
$84,000. Currently, those salaries are accrued and unpaid. Any amounts due officers
will be paid according to this Use of Proceeds schedule. Amounts over and above those
set forth due Officers will be either (a) paid from revenues generated by the Company or
(b) accrued by the Officers until such time as funds for payment other than from this
Offering are available. The proceeds of this Offering will not be used to pay more than
$200,000 (at the Maximum Offering) of OfYicers Salaries (whether accrued or due in
future) under any circumstances.

Employee Compensation - As of the date of this Offering, the Company has two
employees: Lesley Elliott (Chief Executive Officer) and Seth Eltiott (President). The
Company anticipates that, following the Closing of the Offering, it wilt add 1-4
employees. If the Minimum Offering is raised, the Company will hire an
administrative/clerical cmployce. 1f the Maximum Offering is obtained, the Company
anticipates adding the administrative/clerical employee, as well as 1 individual with
specitic production experience and [-2 individuals focused on acquisition and
development. The Company is confident it can secure employces for the amounts set
forth. However, should it prove more costly to hire the appropriate individuals, the
Company will utilize funds from Working Capital to assure the correct hires are made.

Publicity and Advertising — The Company will hire a Publicist or Public Relations firm to
actively promote the Company and its projects. Additionally, the Company will regutarly
engage in advertising and promotional aclivities in regards to its business and specific
properties. This category also includes the costs of reproducing and submitting films to
parties interested in displaying the films, as well as travel and entertainment needed in
promoting the Company and its projects. As noted, in the event of production cost
overruns and/or lack of production financing, the Company may choose to reduce
amounts spent on Publicity and Advertising and shift those funds to the Production
budgets of individual projects. The Company may also choose to allocate Publicity and
Advertising lunds 10 the attendance of Festivals — though no more than $30,000 from this
category would ever be reatlocated (o Festival Attendance on an annual basis.

Working Capital — The Company has allocated a fund for working capital to cover the
costs ol general and administrative expenses consisting of items such as rent, insurance,
ongoing accounting and legal expenses, telephone, postage. equipment and supplies, and
other general operational cost. As noted. it is possible that the amount available for
general working capital needs may be reduced in the event that (a) there are production
cost overruns and/or insufficient project financing and/or (b) screenplay purchases prove
10 be more expensive than anticipated and/or (¢) the cost of hiring additional employces
proves more than anticipated by the Company.

Festival Attendance - The Company intends to send key personnel to major film festivals
and strategically significant markets around the globe. We believe this will prove
essential to our long term plan of operations for the Company in its plan to emphasize
“pre-sale” output deals with international distributors as well as selting the stage lor the
Company's introduction as its own international sales and distribution division. The key
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festival/markets arc: Sundance, Berlin, Cannes, Toronto and the American Film Market.
The Company anticipates festival attendance will be $25,000 ~ $50,000 annually. The
Company may choose to wtilize up to $30,000 annually in additional funds from the
Publicity and Advertising budget for Festival Attendance.

Research and Development - The Company plans to expand its search for independent
films and intellectual property that can be developed into such films for the purposes of
investment and future productions. The Company expects to spend $15,000 if the
Minimum Offering is raised and up to $75.000 it the Maximum Offering is raised on
rescarch and development. In the event that the full amount of research and development
funds are not needed, the Company will reallocate remaining funds in this category to (a)
Intellectual Properly Maintenance if needed and (b) Working Capital thereafter.

Intellectual Property Maintenance — The Company will reserve funds to maintain
production rights and license fees on properties it produces or acquires. The Company
expects 1o spend $15,000 if the Minimum Oftering is raised and up 10 $50,000 if the
Maximum Offering is raised on Intellectual Property Maintenance. In the event that the
full amount of research and development funds are not needed, the Company will
reallocate remaining funds in this category to (a) Rescarch and Development if needed
(b) Festival Attendance if appropriate and (b) Working Capital thercafter.

Websitc and Internet Development - The Company will launch its own website that will
hightight current and Tuture productions. The website will also link the viewer to specific
web pages set up on a project by project basis to better introduce each film to domestic
and international audiences and eventually participate in direct merchandizing. The
Company plans to spend approximately $2.500 1o development a basic site immediaicly
upon Closing of the Minimum Offering and thercafier to spend and additional $7,500 -
$12,500 for website development and web marketing,

Repayment of Advances — During the Company’s existence, the Ofticers of the Company
have advanced funds on behall of the Company. If the Minimum Offering is raised
$9,500 of such advances shatl be repaid and if the Maximum OfTering is raised $9.900 of
such advances shalt be repaid.

Trade Advertisements - In addition (o generalized advertising and publicity campaigns,
the Company intends to advertise its future slate of productions in important industey
trade magazines including: Variety, Hollvwood Reporter, Screen International and
Filmmaker. These costs are estimated to be approximately $5,000 per vear.

Industry Association Fees - The Company intends to market itself to the industry by
joining industry organizations such as The Independent Feature Project and the
Producer’s Guild of America and similar orgamzations, The Company may sponsor or
co-sponsor events within these organizations as part of its marketing eftorts. In the event
that the Minimum OfTering is raised, such costs are expected to be $3,000. 1n the event
that the Maximum Offering is raised, such costs are anticipated to be $10.000.

{b) 1 there is no minimum amount of procecds that must be raised before the Company may usc

the proceeds of the offering, describe the order of priority in which the proceeds set forth
above in the column “H Maximum Sold”™ will be used.



Note:

10.

There is a8 Minimum Offering. At least $1,000,000 (1,000,000 Units) must be sold under the
Offering terms, ‘

After reviewing the portion of the offering allocated 1o the payment of offering expenses, and to
the immediate payment to management and promoters of any fees., reimbursements, past salaries
or similar payments, a potential investor should consider whether the remaining portion of his
investment. which would be that part available for future development of the Company’s business
and operations, would be adequate.

{a)

If material amounts of funds from sources other than this oftering are to be used in
conjunction with the proceeds from this offering, state the amounts and sources of such other
funds, and whether funds are firm or contingent. 1f contingent, explain.

No. Nomaterial funds from sources other than this Offering are to be used in conjunction
with proceeds from this Offering,

{b) If any material part of the proceeds is to be used to discharge indebtedness, describe the terms

{c)

of such indebtedness, including interest rates. If the indebtedness to be discharged was
incurred within the current or previous fiscal year, describe the use of proceeds of such
indebtedness.

No. No matcerial proceeds from this Offering are 1o be used to discharge mdebtedness.

if any material amount of proceeds is to be used to acquire assets, other than in the ordinary
course of business, briefly describe and state the cost of the assets and other material terms of
the acquisitions. I the assets are to be acquired from officers, directors, employees or
principal stockholders of the Company or their associates, give the names of the persons from
whom the assets are to be acquired and set forth the cost to the Company, the method
followed in determining the cost, and any profil 1o such persons.

No. No material proceeds from this' OiTering are to be used to acquire assets, other than in
the ordinary course ol business.

{d) IF any amount of the proceeds is to be used to reimburse any officer, director, employee or

stockholder for services alrcady rendered, asscts previously transferred, or monies loaned or
advanced. or otherwise, explain:

The Officers of the Company have been aceruing salaries al a combined rate of $184,000
annually since January 2009. The Company will use proceeds of the Offering to pay any
accrued salarics as of the Closing Date to the officers. HMowever, as noted in Use of Procceds.
Offering Proceeds used lor salary payments to Officers, both acerucd and ongoing, will not
exceed a total of $125,000 (in the case of the Minimum Offering) or $200,000 (in the case of
the Maxinuim Offering).

The Officers of the Company have advanced funds on behalf of the Company for various
charges. These advances currently total approximately $1,928 and are expected to total up to
$9,900 as of the Closing Date. Offering Proceeds will be used to reimburse the Ofticers for
these advances, up to a 1o1al of $9.900.
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12.

Indicate whether the Company is having or anticipates having within the next 12 months any
cash flow or liquidity problems and whether or not it is in default or in breach of any note.
loan, lease or other indebtedness or financing arrangement requiring the Company to make
payments. Indicate if a significant amount of the Company’s trade payables have not been
paid within the stated trade term. State whether the Company is subject to any unsatisfied
judgments, liens or settlement obligations and the amounts thereof. Indicate the Company’s
plans to resolve any such problems.

* The Company curtently-has no cash flow or liquidity problems, is not on default or in breach

of any indebtedness, financing arrangement or other obligation. The Company has no trade
payable deficiencies and is not subject to any unsatistied judgments, liens or settlement
obligations.

Over the next 12 months, the Company anticipates no cash flow or liquidity problems; no
defaults breach of any indebtedness, financing arrangement or other obligation: no trade
pavable deficiencies; and no unsatisfied judgments, liens or settlement obligations.

Indicate whether proceeds from this offering will satisfy the Company’s cash requirements
for the next 12 months, and whether it will be necessary to raise additional funds. State the
source of additional funds, if known.

The Company belicves that the proceeds of this Offering will be sufficient to satisfy its cash
requirements for the next 12 months. The Company's cost of operating is currently less than
$75,000 annually. as it is currently in development stage. Following the Closing of the
Minimum Offering. the Company anticipates obtaining at least $937.500 in net proceeds (See
Section 9 - Use of Proceeds above). Upon Closing the Company anticipates that monthly
operational costs needed simply o maintain the business, will not exceed $20,000. The
primary expenditures will be on (a) sccuring inteliectual property (b) producing films and (c)
marketing. Fhus, although delays in the milestones set forth above have the potential 10 delay
prospective profitability, such delays should not result in liquidity crises that cali into
question the Company’s ability to operate as a going concern.

The Company also believes that the proceeds of the Minimum Offering will be sufficient to
produce and market at lcast two filins, providing sufficient cash flow ro demonstrate success
of the Company’s business model, [t should be noted that cach film project also calls for
additional financing from other market sources. The financing for these projects comes from
commercial banks, private investors, pre-sales of select foreign distribution rights, use and
remarketing of vartous tax credits and other such mechanisms. The Company is confident of
its ability 1o raise these additional funds lor individual projects. However, even should the
Company have difficulty sccuring part (or all} of these additional funds. the proceeds from
the Minimum Offering provide enough capital to produce and market at least onc (and
possibly two} mdependent films.



13. Indicate the capitalization of the Company as of the most recent balance sheet date (adjusted
to reflect any subsequent stock splits, stock dividends, recapitalizations or refinancings) and
as adjusted to reflect the sale of the minimum and maximum amount of securities in this
offering and the use of the net proceeds therefrom:

As Adjusted
8/31/2008  Minimum Maximum
Debt:
Short Term Debt S - S - 5 -
Long Term Debt 5 - $ - 5 -

Stockholders Equity

Comimon Shares s 3,000 ] 3,000 5 3,000
Additional Paid In Capital $ 1,000,000 S 5,000,000
Retained Earnings {Deficit) S {4,928) S (4,928) S {4,928)
Total Stockholders Equity 5 {1,928) S 998,072 $ 4,998,072
Total Capitalization S {1,928} S 998,072 S 4,998,072

There are no preferred shares (or similar instruments) authorized or cutstanding. There are
no convertible or exchangeable instruments authorized or outstanding.

The Company is a Florida Corporation and has 20,000,000 authorized shares. The Board of
Directors may authorize the issuance of new shares up (o the total authorized share amount.



DESCRIPTION OF SECURITIES

14,

15.

19.

The securities being offered hereby are:

[X] Common Stock

[ ] Preferred or Preference Stock

[ ] Notes or Debentures

[ ] Units of two or more tvpes of securitics composed of:

[ ]Other:

These securities have:

Yes No

[] [X] Cumulative voting rights

[ [X] Other special voting rights

[ [X} Preemptive rights to purchase in new issues of shares
[ [X1 Preference as to dividends or interest

[ [X] Preference upon liquidation

[ [X] Other special rights or preferences (specify):

Arc the sccuritics convertible? [ | Yes [X] No

(a) If securities are notes or ather types of debt securities:

The securities Offered hereby are not notes or debt securities

if securities are Preference or Preferred siock:

The securities Offered hereby are not Preferred stock and have no Preference.

If securities are capital stock of any type. indicate restrictions on dividends under loan or
other financing arrangements or otherwise:

No restrictions on dividends under loan or financing arrangements exist

Current amount of assets available for pavment of dividends if deficit must be first made up,
show deficit in parenthesis):

$ (4,928)
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PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION

The selling agents (that is, ihe persons selling the securities as agent for the Company for a
commission or other compensation) in this offering are:

The Company is not using any selling agents. Officers of the Company wilt be making the
Offering to Investors.

Describe any compensation to selling agents or finders, including cash, sccurities, contracts
or other consideration, in addition to the cash commission set forth as a percent of the
offering price on the cover page of this Offering Circular. Also indicate whether the
Company will indemnify the selling agents or finders against liabilities under the securities
laws. (“Finders” are persons who for compensation act as intermediaries in obtaining selling
agents or otherwise makinyg introductions in furtherance of this offering.)

The Company is not using any selling agents. Officers of the Company will be making the
Offering to Investors.

Describe any material relationships between any of the selling agents or finders and the
Company or its management. Note: After reviewing the amount of compensation to the
setling agents or finders for selling the securities, and the nature of any relationship between
the selling agents or finders and the Company, a potential investor should assess the extent to
which it may be inappropriate to rely upon any recommendation by the selling agents or
finders to buv the securities,

The Company is not using any selling agents. Officers ol the Company will be making the
Oftering to Investors.

If this offering is not being made through selling agents. the names of persons at the
Company through which this offering is being made:

Seth Elliott Lesley Elliot

{830 S, Ocean Drive 1830 8. Ocean Drive
Suite 3003 Suite 3003
Hallandale, FLL 33009 Haliandale, FL 33009
{954} 369-57140 {954) 369-5710

1f this offering is limited to a special group; such as emplovees of the Company. or is limited
10 a certain number of individuals (as required to qualify under Subchapter S of the Internal
Revenue Code) or is subject to any other limitations, deseribe the limitations and any
restrictions on resale that apply:

No such limitations exist. The Units are not expected 1o be restricted.

Name, address and telephone number of independent bank or savings and loan association or
other similar depository institution acting as escrow agent if proceeds are escrowed until
minimum proceeds are raised:

Citibank, N.A.



(b)

500 . Broward Blvd.
Ft. Lauderdale, FI. 33394
{954} 463-3071

Date a1 which funds will be returned by escrow agent if minimum proceeds are not raised:

180 days following the first of any funds received by the escrow agent pursuant to this
Regulation A Offering Statement

Will interest on proceeds during escrow period be paid to investors? [ ] Yes[X] No

Explain the nature of any resale restrictions on presently outstanding shares, and when thosc
restrictions will terminate, 1f this can be determined:

All issued and outstanding common stock of the company is currently held by “affiliates” and
is subject Lo a restrictive legend.

In general, under Rule 144, as amended effective February 15, 2008, a person who has
beneficially owned restricted shares of our common stock for at least six months would be
entitled to sell within any three-month period a number of shares that does not exceed the
greater of either of the following:

1) 1% ol the number of sharcs of common stock then outstanding, which will equal
100,000 shares immediately after this offering if the Maximum Offering is closed;
and '

2) the average weekly trading volume of the common stock during the four calendar
weeks preceding the filing of a notice on Form 144 with respect 1o the sale

Sales of restricted shares under Rule 144, as amended effective February 15, 2008, are also
subject to requirements regarding the manner of sale. notice and the availability of current
public information about us. For a person who has not been deemed to have been onc of our
affiliates at anv time during the three months preceding a sale, sales of our securities held
longer than six months. bt less than one vear, will be subjeet only to the current public
information requirement. Rule t44 also provides that affiliates that sell our common shares
that afe not restricted shares must nonetheless comply with the same restrictions applicable to
restricied shares. other than the holding period requirement.

Under Rule 144(k), as amended effective February 13, 2008, a person who is not deemed to
have been one of our affiliates at the time ot or at any time during the three months preceding
a sale. and who has beneficially owned the restricted shares proposed to be sold for at least
one year, including the holding period of any prior owner other than an affiliate, is entitled to
scll their shares without complying with the manner of sale. public information, volume
limitation or notice provisions of Rule 144,

Any sales of shares by shareholders pursuant 1o rule 144 may have a depressive effect on the
price of our common stock. There are no shares of our common stock that are not being
offercd by this registration statement that could be sold pursuant to Rule 144 by non-
affiliates.



Note:

28.

Equity investors should be aware that unless the Company is able to complete a further public
offering or the Company is able to be sold for cash or merged with a public company that
their investment in the Company may be illiquid indefinitely.

DIVIDENDS, DISTRIBUTIONS AND REDEMPTIONS

if the Company has within the last five years paid dividends, made distributions upon its
stock or redeemed any securities. explain how much and when:

The Company has paid no dividends, made any distributions or redeemed any securities.
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OFFICERS AND KEY PERSONNEL OF THE COMPANY

Chief Executive OfTicer:
Name: Lesley Elliott
Olfice Street Address:

Telephone No.:

Dates:
Company:
Title:

Responsibilities:

Dates:
Company:
Title:

Responsibilitics:

Dates:
Company:
Title:

Responsibilities:

Title: Chief Executive Officer
Age: 33

1830 S. Ocean Drive., Suite 3003
Haltandale, FL. 33009

(954 }369-5710

Name of employers, titles and dates of positions held during past five vears with an indication of
Jjob responsibilities.

2006-2008

The Tobé Report

Fashion Editor

Wrote weekly short and long feature copy and engaged in editorial
process for weekly trade publication focusing on fashion and retailing

2005-20006

Saks Fifth Avenue .

Associate Buyer

Exccuted children’s department assortment planning for 26 stores,
including facilitating merchandise purchasing and negotiating delivery.

2003-2004

Donna Karan NY -

Lifestyle Buver

Exccuted 14 store assortment planning and managed multi-vendor
departments, as well as managed market sourcing and exclusive product
development. '

Education (degrees, schools, and dates):

Date:
Degrec:
[nstitution:

B.A. English
Rutgers University
New Brunswick, NJ

Also a Director of the Company [X] Yes | ] No

indicate amount of time 10 be spent on Company matters if less than full time: 80%

Chief Operating Ofiicer:
Name: Seth Elliott
Office Street Address:

Telephone No.:

Title: President

Age: 39

1830 S. Occan Drive., Suite 3003
Hallandale, FLL 33009

(9541 369-5710



Namec of employers, titles and dates of positions held during past five years with an indication of

job responsibilities.

Dates:
Company:

Title:
Responsibilities:

Dates:
Company:

Title:
Responsibilities:

Dates:
Company:

Title:
Responsibilities:

2008

Apheleon, LLC

Managing Member

Serve as senior executive of management consulting company offering
services 1o small and middle market clients including: Business
Intelligence, Business Valuations, Reverse Mergers, Capital Markets
Analysis, Mergers and Acquisitions, Financing Structures. Risk
Mitigation, Asset Tracing and Recovery and Due Diligence

2004-2008

Pegasus Advisory Group

President

Founder and Senior Executive of consulting company oflering services
to small and middle market clients including: Business Valuations,
Reverse Mergers, Capital Markets Analysis, Mcrgers and Acquisitions,
Financing Structures, and Due Diligence

2002-2004

Corporate Sotutions Group, LL.C

Managing Director

Managing Director of privatc Merchant Bank offering ESOP structuring,
Mergers and Acquisitions and Financing Structure services to middle
markel companies, |

Education {degrees, schools, and dates):

Date: 1996
M.B.A, Finance
New York University, Leonard Stern School of Business

Degree:
Institution;

New York, NY

Date: 19G1
B.A. International Relations and Economics
The American University, School of International Service

Deygree:
Instilution:

Washington, DC

Also a Director of the Company [X] Yes [ ] No

Indicate amount of time 10 be spent on Company matters if less than full time: 30%

Chief Financial Officer:

Name: Seth Elliott

Office Street Address:

Telephone No.:

Title: President

Age: 39

F830 S. Ocean Drive., Suite 3003
Hallandale, FL 33009
(954 3 369-5710



Name of employers, titles and dates of positions held during past five years with an indication of

job responsibilities.

Dates:
Company:
Title:

Responsibilities:

Dates:
Company:
Title:

Responsibilities:

Dates:
Company:
Title:

Responsibilities:

2008

Apheleon, LLL.C

Managing Member

Serve as scnior executive of management consulting company offering
services 1o small and middle market clients including: Business
Intelligence, Business Valuations, Reverse Mergers, Capital Markets
Analysis, Mergers and Acquisitions, Financing Structures. Risk
Mitigation, Asset Tracing and Recovery and Due Diligence

2004-2008

Pegasus Advisory Group

President

Founder and Senior Executive of consulting company offering services
to small and middle market clients including: Business Valuations,
Reverse Mergers, Capital Markets Analysis, Mergers and Acquisitions,
Financing Structures, and Due Diligence

2002-2004

Corporate Solutions Group, LLC

Managing Director

Managing Director of private Merchant Bank offering ESOP structuring,
Mergers and Acquisitions and Financing Structure services to middle
markel companies.

Education (degrees, schools, and dates):

Date:
Degree:
Institution:

Date:
Degree:
Institution:

M.B.A, Finance
New York Umiversity, Leonard Stern School of Business
New York, NY

B.A. International Relations and Economics
The American University, School of International Service
Washington, DC

Also a Director of the Company [X] Yes [ | No

Indicate amount of time to be spent on Company matters if less than full time: 30%
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DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY

Number of Directors: 3.
Directors are elected annually

Information concerning outside Directors:

Name: Nick Stagliano
Title:  Director
Office Street Address:

Telephone No.:

Age: 50

214 Sullivan Strect, Suite 2C
New York, NY 10012
(212) 475-6270

Name of employers, titles and dates of positions held during past five years with an indication of

job responsibilitics.

Datcs:
Company:

Title:
Responsibilities:

1990 - 2008

Nazz Productions Inc.

Chairman and Chief Executive OfTicer

Serve as senior executive of independent film production company.
During this time Mr. Stagliano produced and directed The Florentine
(starring Jeremy Davies, Michael Madsen, Chris Penn, Luke Perry. Tom
Sizemore, Mary Stuart Masterson, Virginia Madsen, Hal Holbrook, Burt
Young and James Belushi. This film was executive produced by Francis
Ford Coppola. The Florentine won Special Jury Award, best narrative
feature at the 2000 Nashville Film Festival, 1t was invited to the
Mavericks Film Festival in London, England and screened at Cannes,
Milan and in Los Angeles as part of the American Film Market. Aftera
limited theatrical release the film premicred on HIBCG and the STARZ
network. To date, the film has sold to every major international sales
territory including Germany, Japan. Spain, ltaly. the U.K. and France)
and The 24" Duy (starving James Marsden and Scott Speedman. 77 24"
Den- had its World Premiere at the 2004 Fribeca Film Festival in New
York City. After that, the film made its theatrical premiere in New York
before moving out throughout the country. Afier its theatrical run in Los
Angeles, the film was released through Universal Studios on home video
in late 2004. The 24" Dav has been invited 1o over 10 festivals
throughout the world, and has sold to over 20 international territories. 1t
has screened at Cannes, Milan and the AFM). Mr. Stagliano is currently
involved in produce and/or directing several products for NAZZ
Productions, Inc.

Education {degrecs, schools. and dates):

Date: 1985
Degree: MFA
Institution: New York University, Graduate Film {nstitute

New York, NY



Date: 1980
Degree: B.A. English and Communications
Institution: Villanova University

Villanova, PA

(a) Have any of the Officers or Directors ever worked for or managed a company (including a

separate subsidiary or division of a larger enterprise) in the same business as the Company?
[X] Yes [ ] No

Mr. Stagliano, a Director of the Company, is the Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of
NAZZ Productions, Inc. NAZZ is an independent film company that is in the same business
as the Company.

{b) If any of the OfTicers, Directors or other key personnel have ever worked for or managed a

{c)

(d)

company in the same business or indusiry as the Company or in a related business or
industry, describe what precautions, if any, (including the obtaining of releases or consents
from prior employers) have been taken o preclude claims by prior employers for conversion
or theft of trade secrets, know-how or other proprictary information.

The Company has taken no specific steps or precautions to preclude such claims because Mr.
Stagliano is the senior executive and majority sharcholder of NAZZ.

If the Company has never conducted operations or is otherwisc in the development stage,
indicale whether any of the Officers or Directors has ever managed any other company in the
starl-up or development stage and describe the circumstances. including relevant dates.

Mr. Eltiott, President and Dircetor of the Company, has been involved in a number of start-up
and development stage caterpriscs. In 1999, he was co-founder and Interim President of
Sncakers.com. a start-up internet retailer. After securing in excess of $2 million of initial
financing and a professional management team, Mr. Elliott stepped down as an Officer at the
end of 1999, From 1999 through 2001, Mr. Elliott provided advisory services to several
start-up companies, including serving as Chief Financial Officer of Double Agent. Inc., a
private software development firm.

Mr. Stagliano, Dircctor of the Company, was the founder of NAZZ Productions, Inc. and has
served as its Chief Executive OfTicer and Chairman since inception. NAZZ has successfully

produced two independent films and is currently involved in several new projects.

if any of the Company’s key personnel arc not employees but are consultants or other
independent contractors, state the details of their engagement by the Company.

No key personnel are currently consultants or independent contractors,

(c} If the Company has key man life insurance policies on any of its Officers, Directors or key

personnel. explain. including the names of the persons insured, the amount of insurance,
whether the insurance proceeds are payable to the Company and whether there are
arrangements that require the proceeds 1o be used to redeem securities or pay beneflts to the
estate of the insured person or a surviving spouse.

The Company has no key man life insurance policies.
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Nole:

PRINCIPA

37.

Name

Lesley Ellio
Seth Elliott

38.

If a petition under the Bankruptey Act or any State insolvency law was filed by or against the
Company or its Officers, Directors or other key personnel. or a receiver, fiscal agent or
similar officer was appointed by a court for the business or property of any such persons. or
any partnership in which any of such persons was a general partner at or within the past five
vears, or any corporation or business association of which any such person was an executive
officer at or within the past five vears, set forth below the name of such persons, and the
nature and date of such actions.

There have been no such filings.

After reviewing the information concerning the background of the Company’s Officers,
Directors and other key personnel, potential investors should consider whether or not these
persons have adequate background and experience to develop and operate this Company and
to make it successful. In this regard, the experience and ability of management are often
considered the most significant factors in the success of a business.

L STOCKHOLDERS

Principal owners of the Company (those who beneficially own directly or indirectly 10% or
more of the common and preferred stock presently outstanding) starting with the largest
common stockholder. Include separately ail common stock issuable upon conversion of
convertible securities (identifving them by asterisk) and show average price per share as if
conversion has occurred. Indicate by footnote if the price paid was for a consideration other
than cash and the nature of any such consideration.

Class of Total Now Y if Yo if

Shares Owned % of Total Min. Sold Max Sold
tt Common 4,164,000 80% 67.10% 40.80%

Comimon 1,041,000 20% 16.78% 10.20%

Number of shares beneficially owned by Officers and Directors as a group:

Before offering: 5,205,000 shares (100% of total outstanding)

After offering: a) Assuming minimum sceuritics sold: 5.205,000 shares (83.88 % of
total outstanding)
b) Assuming maximum securities sold: 5.205.000 shares (51% ol tolal
outstanding)

MANAGEMENT RELATIONSHIPS, TRANSACTIONS AND REMUNERATION

39.
(a)

Il any of the OfTicers. Directors, key personnel or principal stockholders are related by blood
or martiage. please describe.

Lesley Elliott. Chairman and Chief Executive Officer and Seth Elliott, President and Dircctor,

are wife and husband

(b) If the Company has made loans to or is doing business with any of its Officers. Directors, key

personnel or 10% stockholders, or any of their relatives (or any entity controlled directly or
indirectly by any such persons) within the last two years. or proposes 1o do so within the
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(c)

(a)

(b)

(a)

(b)

future, explain. (This includes sales or lease of goods, property or services to or from the
Company. employment or stock purchase contracts, etc.). State the principal terms of any
signiftcant loans, agreements, leases, financing or other arrangements.

Not applicable. No such business or arrangements exist or are contemplated 1o exist.

If any of the Company’s Officers, Directors, key personnel or 10% stockholders has
guaranteed or co-signed any of the Company’s bank debt or other obligations, including any
indebtedness to be retired from the proceeds of this offering, explain and state the amounts
involved.

Not applicable.

List all remuneration by the Company to Officers, Directors and key personnel for the last
fiscal year:

Title Cash Remuncration Other Remuneration
Chief Executive Officer None None
Chiet Operating Ofticer** None None
Chicf Accounting Officer** None None
Directors as a Group (2 persons) None' None

tf remuneration is expected to change or has been unpaid in prior vears please explain:

As of January 2009, the Company has changed the remuneration of the Chiell Executive
Officer to $100.000 per annum and the President to $84.000 per annum,

[ any employment agreements exist or are contemplated describe:

No employment agreements exist or are contemplated by the Company.,

Number of Units subject to issuance under presently outstanding Unit purchase agreements,
Unit options, warrants or rights: 0 Units (0% of total Units to be outstanding after the
completion of the offering if all securities sald, assuming exercise of options and conversion
of convertible securities). Indicate which have been approved by sharcholders. State the
expiration dates. exercise prices and other basic terms for these securities:

There are no options, warrants or similar sccurities or agreements outstanding.

Number of Units subject to issuance under existing Unit purchase or option plans but not vet
covered by oulstanding purchase agrecments, options or warrants: 0 Units.

There are no options. warrants or similar securities or agreements outstanding.




42.

Note:

43,

44,

Note:

(c¢) Describe the extent to which future stock purchase agreements, options, warranmts or rights

must be approved by shareholders.

Pursuant to the By-laws of the Company, the majority of the board of directors of the
Company may approve future stock purchase agreements, options. warrants or rights without
the requirement for sharcholder approval.

if the business is highly dependent on the services of certain key personnel, describe any
arrangements t¢ assure that these persons will remain with the Company and not compete
upon any termination:

The Company has taken no steps or arrangements in regard to key personnel of this nature.

After reviewing the above, potential investors should consider whether or not the
compensation to management and other key personnel directly or indirectly, is reasonable in
view of the present stage of the Company’s development.

LITIGATION

Describe any past, pending or threatened litigation or administrative action which has had or
may have a material effect upon the Company’s business, financial condition, or operations.
including any litigation or action involving the Company’s Officers, Dircctors or other key
personnel. State the names of the principal partics. the nature and current status of the
matters, and amounts involved. Give an evaluationby management or counsel, to the extent
feasible, of the merits of the proceedings or litigation and the potential impact on the
Company’s business. financial condition, or operations.

The Company is unaware of any such litigation, cither pending or threatened.
FEDERAL TAX ASPECTS

If the Company is an S corporation under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, and it is
anticipated that any significant tax benefits will be available to investors in this oftering,
indicate the nature and amount of such anticipated tax benefits and the material risks of their
disallowance. Also. statc the name, address and telephone number of any tax advisor that has
passed upon these tax benefits. Attach any opinion or description of the Lax consequences of
an mvestment in the securities by the tax advisor.

The Company is unaware of any significant tax benefits that may be made available to
investors in this Offering. No tax advisory has rendered an opinion in regard to 1ax matters of
an investiment in this Offering.

Potential investors arc encouraged to have their own personal tax consultant contact the tax
advisor o review details of the tax bencefits and the extent that the benefits would be available
and advantageous to the particular investor.

MISCELLANEQUS FACTORS

45.

Describe any other material factors, cither adverse or favorable, that will or could affect the
Company or its business (for example, discuss any defaults under major contracis, any breach



46.

47.

48.

49.

of bylaw provisions, etc.) or which are necessary to make any other information in this
Offering Circular not misleading or incomplete.

None known.
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Provide the financial statements required by Part F/S of this Offering Circular section of
Form 1-A.

Please the Company’s Financial Statements attached hereto.

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF CERTAIN RELEVANT FACTORS

[f the Company’s financial statements show losses from operations, explain the causes
underlying these losses and what steps the Company has taken or is taking to address these
causcs.

The Company is a development stage enterprise and has only been in existence since
February 18, 2008. As such, the initial operations of the Company have consisted of
analyzing the marketplace, determining an effective business model and securing a key
member of the Board of Directors. During this time the Company has gencrated no revenues
and a small (non-cash) loss.

The Company believes that upon receipt of appropriate funding, it can effectively compete in
the independent film production industry. Management believes that with net capital of at
least $450,000 (fess than half of the net proceeds of the Minimum Offering) the Company can
secure intellectual property, produce and promote at least one film. Accordingly, the
management teant has focused on preparing this Offering and raising the Minimum proceeds
in order 1o actualize the Company s business plan (further details of key milestones needed to
achieve profitabitity can be found in ltem da of this Offering Statement).

Describe any trends in the Company’s historical operating results. Indicate any changes now
occurring in the underlyving economics of the industry or the Company’s business which, in
the opinion of Management, will have a significant impact {eithcr favorable or adverse) upon
the Company’s results of operations within the next 12 months, and give a rough estimate of
the probable extent of the impact, if possible.

The Company is not aware of any changes in industry cconomics that will have a significant
impact upon the Company’s operations over the next 12 months. The Company has only
existed sinee February 18, 2008, As such there are no trends in the Company’s historical
operating results, The initial operations of the Company have consisted of analyzing the
marketplace, determining an effective business model and securing a key member of the
Board of Directors. During this time the Company has generated no revenues and a small
{non-cash) loss.

1 the Company sells a product or products and has had significant sales during its last liscal
year, stale the existing gross margin (net sales less cost of such sales as presented in
accordance with genterally aceepted accounting principles) as a percentage of sales for the last
fiscal year: 0%. What is the anticipated gross margin for next vear of operations?



Approximatcly N/A%. If this is expected to change, explain. Also, if reasonably current gross
margin figures are available for the industry, indicate these figures and the source or sources
from which they are obiained.

Film production does not consist of generating a uniform product utilizing standardized
inputs with readily determinable costs. Each project is different, with input factors including
screenplay costs, producer fees, actor and director fecs, location costs. equipment rental
needs, and many other factors, As such, any projections regarding general gross margins for
a production company would likely serve to mislead, rather than inform, potentiai investors in
the Offering.

As such, the Company is unaware of any current generalized gross margin figures across the
industry.

Foreign sales as a percent of 10tal sales for last fiscal year: %. Domestic government sales as
a percent of total domestic sales for last fiscal year: 0 %. Explain the nature of these sales,
including any anticipated changes:

The Company is a development stage enterprise and has only been in existence since
February |18, 2008, As such, the initial operations of the Company have consisted of
analyzing the marketplace, determining an effective business model and securing a key
membet of the Board of Directors. During this time the Company has generaled no revenues,
Government sales will not be a component of the Company’s business.

The Company hopes that cach of its film products will have foreign sales. Such sales will be
dependent upon the negatiations with distribulors lor foreign rights for each individual flm
project.



MANAGEMENT SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, the registrant has duly caused this
Offering Statement to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in
the City of Ft. Lauderdale, State of Florida, on this L5 th day of Nevember-2668.

VER PRODUCTIONS, INC. Fesru«) 90001
?/4&%/%

ésley EH:@

Chairman’and Chief Executive Officer

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each individual whose sighature appears
below constitutes and appoints Lesley Elliott, his true and lawful attorneys-in-fact and agents with
fult power of substitution, for his and in his name, place and stead, in any and all capacities, to
sign any and all amendments (including post-effective amendments) to this Offering Statement,
and to sign any registration statement for the same offering covered by this Offering Statement
that is to be effective upon filing pursuant to Rule 462(b) promulgated under the Securities Act of
1933, and all post-effective amendments thereto, and to file the same, with all exhibits thereto
and all documents in connection therewith, with the Securities and Exchange Commission,
granting unto said attorneys-in-fact and agents, and each of them, full power and authority to do
and perform each and every act and thing requisite and necessary to be done in and about the
premises, as fully to all intents and purposes as she might or could do in person, hereby ratifying
and confirming all that said attorneys-in-fact and agents or any of them, or his or their substitute
or substitutes, may lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue hereof.

PURSUANT TO THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED,
THIS OFFERING STATEMENT HAS BEEN SIGNED BY THE FOLLOWING PERSONS IN THE

CAPACITIES AND ON THE DATES INDICATED:
SIGNATURE TITLE DATE

iy U

Lesle Ellio
Chalrman d Chief Executive Officer, NovoRBoR—2008

L% % B

Seth Elliott
President and Director, NovorsBar——=2008
r‘f’;&wg iZ Jovg

Nick Stagliano



VERGE PRODUCTIONS, INC.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Interim Statement as of December 31, 2008
Unaudited

{Prepared by Management}



Verge Productions, Inc.
Balance Sheet Inception (February 18, 2008) to December 31, 2008
(unaudited}

ASSETS

Cash $ -

Total Current Assets

Total Assets -

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Deferred Salary -
Officers Advances 1,928
Accounts Payable -

Total Current Liabifities 1,928

Other Liabilities -

Total Liahilities 1,928
Capital Stock 3,000
Retained Earnings (4.928)
Tota! Equity {1,928)

Totat Liabilities and Equity -

Financial statements prepared by management
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements



Verge Productions, Inc.

Statement of Operations Inception (February 18, 2008} to December 31, 2008

{unaudited)

REVENUES

Salaries
Accounting/Legal Fees
Miscellanecus Expenses
Postage and Delivery
Professional Fees

Rent

Office Supplies
Telephone and Fax

TOTAL EXPENSES
Income (loss) from operations
PRE-TAX INCOME
Taxes
NET INCOME
NET INCOME {LLOSS) PER COMMON SHARE

Basic
Fully Diluted

Financial statements prepared by management

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

) &

2,600
373
219

1,500

66
270

4,928

{(4,928)

(4,928)

(4,928)

(0.001)
(0.001)



Verge Productions, Inc.

Statement of Cash Flows (February 18, 2008) to December 31, 2008

{unaudited)

Net Income (4,928)

Depreciation -
Changes in Deferred Salry -
Changes in Officers Advances 1,928

Changes in Accounts Payable -
Cash From QOperations {3,000)
Cash From Investments -
Cash From Financing 3,000
Increase/Decrease Cash -

Beginning Cash -
Ending Cash -

Financial statements prepared by management
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

The financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Verge
Productions, inc. as of December 31, 2008 and the result of its operations for the period from inception
to that date in conformity with accounting principtes generally accepted in the United States of America.



Verge Productions, Inc,
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{unaudited)

1. THE COMPANY

The Company was organized as a Limited Liability Corporation in the jurisdiction of the state of Florida
on February 18, 2008 as L&S NY Holdings, LLC.

On October 6, 2008, the Company converted its corporate structure to a C Corporation and renamed the
Company Verge Productions, Inc.

At Decernber 31, 2008, the Company had 5,205,000 Common Shares outstanding.

The Company is engaged in the marketing and distribution of entertainment media, specifically fitms.
Product distribution is direct to users.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Accounting Methods

This summary of significant accounting policies of the Company is presented to assist in understanding
the Company’s financial statements. The financial statements and notes are representations of the
Company's management which is respaonsible for the integrity and objectivity of the financial
statements. These accounting policies conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America and have been consistently applied in the preparation of these financial
statements.

Property and Equipment
Property and equipment is stated at cost. Depreciation is provided utilizing the straight line method over
the estimated useful lives of the assets, ranging from five to fifteen years.

Stock Based Compensation

In 1995, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued SFAS No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation. As permitted by this Standard, the Company measures compensation cost using the’
intrinsic vatue-based method of accounting prescribed by the Accounting Principles Board (APB) Opinion
No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees. In 2004, FASB issued a revision of FASB Statement No.
123. This Statement supersedes APB:Cpinion No. 25 and its related implementation guidance. This
revised pronouncement requires that all stock options and warrants be accounted for using the fair
value method. At August 31, 2008, the Company has not incurred any stock based compensation.



Basic and diluted Net Income {Loss) Per Share
For the purposes of these financial statements, Membership Units are treated as shares of common
stock.

Net loss per share is provided in accordance Financial Accounting Standards No. 128 {FAS No. 128)
“Earning Per Share”. Basic loss per share is computed by dividing losses available to common
stockholders by the weighted-average number of common shares during the period. Diluted loss per
share reflect the per share amount that would have resulted if dilutive common stock equivalents had
been converted to commeon stock. No stock options were available or granted during the periods
presented,

Dividend Pglicy
The Company has not yet adopted any policy regarding payment of dividends. No dividends have been

paid since inception and it is unlikely that dividends will be paid in the foreseeable future.

income Taxes

The company recognizes deferred tax liabilities and assets based on the differences between the tax
basis of assets and liabilities and their reported amounts in the financial statements that will resultin
taxable or deductible amounts in future years.

Financial Instruments

The carrying amounts of financial instruments are considered by management to be their estimated fair
value.

Estimates and Assumptions

Management used estimates and assumptions in preparing financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. Those estimates and assumptions affect the reported
amounts of the assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent asset and liabilities, and the reported
revenues and expenses. Actual results could vary from the estimates that were assumed in preparing
these financial statements.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

The Company does not expect that the adoption of recent accounting pronouncements will have a
material impact on its financial statements.

3. COMMON SHARES

In February 2008, the Company issued 5,205,000 Membership Units to the two founders of the
Company. On October 6, 2008 the Company converted to a C Corporation and exchanged those units
for 5,205,000 shares of Common Stock. As of December 31, 2008 there were 5,205,000 Common Shares
outstanding.

-



4. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS .

Mr. Elliott has paid $1,928 in expenses on behalf of the Company. These expenses have been
characterized as Officer Advances on the balance sheet of the Company. Mr. Elliott is President and a
Director of the Company.

Mr. Eiliott and Mrs. Elliott, the sole Officers of the Company, are husband and wife.



PART HIi - EXHIBITS

Certificate of Formation of L&S NY Holdings. LLC

Articles of Conversion of L&S NY Holdings, LLC to Verge Productions, Inc. and Articles of
Incorporation of Verge Productions, Inc.

By-Laws of Verge Productions, Inc.

l.egal Opinion of Cohen & Czamik LLLP



Electronic Articles of Organization 18000013430,
. . LEOL ., Eebryar 12, 2008
Florida Limited Liability Company ec. Of State

tclme
Article I
The name of the Limited Liability Company is:
L&S NY HOLDINGS, LLC

Article I1
The street address of the principal office of the Limited Liability Company is:

1835 EAST HALLANDALE BEACH BLVD.
PMB #469
HALLANDALE, FL. US 33009

The mailing address of the Limited Liability Company is:

1835 EAST HALLANDALE BEACH BLVD.
PMB #469
HALLANDALE, FL. US 33009

Article 11
The purpose for which this Limited Liability Company is organized 1s:

ANY AND ALL LAWFUL BUSINESS.

Article IV
The name and Florida street address of the registered agent 1s:
SETH A ELLIOTT
1835 EAST HALLANDALE BEACH BLVD.

PMB #469
HALLANDALE, FL. 33009

Having been named as registered agent and to accept service of process
for the above stated limited liability company at the place designated

in this certificate, I hereby accept the appointment as registered agent
and agree to act in this capacity. [ further agree to comply with the
provisions of all statutes relating to the proper and complete performance
of my duties, and [ am tamiliar with and accept the obligations of my -
position as registered agent.

Registered Agent Signature: SETH A. ELLIOTT



Article V .

The name and address of managing members/managers are:

Title: MGRM

SETH A ELLIOTT

1835 EAST HALLANDALE BEACH BLVD., PMB #469
HALLANDALE, FL. 33009 US

Title: MGRM

LEZLEY N GOLDBAUM

1835 EAST HALLANDALE BEACH BLVD., PMB #469
HALLANDALE, FL. 33009 US

Signature of member or an authorized representative of a member
Signature: SETH A. ELLIOTT

Sec. Of State

tcline



Certificate of Conversion
For

“Other Business Entity”

Into
Florida Profit Corporation

This Certificate of Conversion and attached Articles of Incorporation are submitted to
convert the following “Other Business Entity” into a Florida Profit Corporation in
accordance with s. 607.1113, Florida Statutes. '

1. The name of the “Other Business Entity” immediately prior to the filing of this Certificate
of Conversion is:

L&S NY Holdings, LLC

(Enter Name of Other Business Entity)

2. The “Other Business Entity” is a limited liability company LOK@CKU / 5 qq(a
(Eater entity type. Example: limited liability company, limited partnership, sole
proprietorship, general partnership, common law or business trust, etc.)

first organized, formed or incorporated under the laws of _Florida
(Enter state, or if a non-U.S. entity, the name of the country)

on February 12, 2008 .
(Eanter date “Other Business Entity” was first organized, formed or incorporated)

3. Ifthe jurisdiction of the “Other Business Entity” was changed, the state or country under the
laws of which it is now organized, formed or incorporated:

4. The name of the Florida Profit Corporation as set forth in the attached Articles of
Incorperation:

Verge Productions, Inc.

{Enter Name of Florida Profit Corporation)

5. If not effective on the date of filing, enter the effective date:
(The effective date: 1) cannot be prior to nor more than 90 days after the date this
document is filed by the Florida Department of State; AND 2) must be the same as the
effective date listed in the attached Articles of Incorporation, if an effective date is listed
therein.)}

Page 1 of 2




Signed this 1 day of October ,2008

Required Signature for Florida Profit Corporation:

Signature of Chairman, Vice Chajrman, Di?;t Officer, or, if Directors or Officers have not
7

been selected, an Incorporator: _g Lo
Printed Name: Seth Elliott Title: Dlrector and President

uired Signature(s) pn behalf of Other Business Entity: [See below for required

SIgnature(s) )|
Signature: @ F /64/0417

Printed Name: Seth Eliiott Title: Managing Mamber
Signature:
Printed Name: Title:
Signature:
Printed Name: Tille: = o

i D 1 '
Signature: ';'.':‘_ o LA
Printed Name: Title: »__,_;::1 o m""
Signature: E«-{-sé
Printed Name: - Title: .
Signature: . o
Printed Name: Title:

Il Florida General Partnership or Limited Liability Partnership:

Signature of one General Partner,

If Florida Limited Partnership or Limited Liability Limited Partnership:
Signatures of ALL General Partners.

If Florida Limited Liability Company:
Signature of a Member or Authorized Representative.

All others:
Signature of an authorized person.

Fees:
Centificate of Conversion: $35.00
Fees for Fiorida Articles of Incorporation:  $70.00
Cenified Copy: $8.75 (Optional)
Centificate of Status: $8.75 (Optional)

Page2 of 2




ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION
In compliance with Chapter 607 and/or Chapter 621, F.S. (Profit)

ARTICLE I NAME
The name of the corporation shall be:

Verge Productions, Inc.

ARTICLELN _ PRINCIPAL OFFICE
The principal place of business/mailing address is:
2681 E. Oakland Park Blvd.

Suite 214
Ft. Lauderdale, FL 33306

ARTICLE! PURPOSE
The purpose for which the corporation is organized is:

} To produce, invest in and distribute independent films, television programming and related content.

ARTICLE IV SHARES
The number of shares of stock is:

' The Company is authorized to issue up to 20,000,000 shares of Common Stock.

ARTICLE V INITIAL OFFICERS AND/OR DIRECTORS

List name(s), address(es) and specific title(s):

Lesley Elliott, Chairman and CEQ, 1830 S. Ocean Drive, #3003, Hallandale, FL 33009

Seth Elliott, President and Director, 1830 S. Ocean Drive, #3003, Hallandale, FL 33009
‘ Nick Stagllano, Director, 1931 Berkley Road, Norristown, PA 19403

ARTICLE VI REGISTERED AGENT
The name and Florida street address (P.O. Box NOT acceptable) of the registered agent is:

Seth Elliott, 2881 E. Oaldand Park Blvd., Suite 214,
] Ft. Lauderdale, FL 33306




ARTICLEVII INCORPORATOR
The name and address of the Incorporator is:

Seth Elliott, 2881 E. Oakland Park Blvd., Suite 214,
Ft. Lauderdate, FL 33308

RS ET LIRS R RS2 R e R RS2SRRSR S SRR R SRS RIS RS AL AR SRR L 2 LA L LD AL 2o

Having been named as registered agent to accept service of process for the above stated corporation at the place
designated in this certificate, I am famillar with and accept the appointment as registered agent and agree to act in this

capacity .
4@@6{? % [0/ioP
Signature/Register gent ~ Date
,XM& i) 1o

Signature/Incorporator Date

0s 6 W 9- 130 80




BYLAWS
OF

VERGE PRODUCTIONS, INC.

INCORPORATED UNDER THE LAWS OF FLORIDA

RRTICLE I -~ IDENTIFICATION

SECTION 1. PRINCIPAL OFFICE. The principal office of the Company shall
be at such place within or outside of the State of Florida as the Board
of Directors shall by resolution from time to time designate.

SECTION 2. SEAL. The Company shall have & corporate seal in such form
as the Board of Directors shall by resclution from time to time
prescribe. The Board of Directors may elect not to utilize & corporate
seal.

SECTION 3. FISCAL YEAR. The fiscal year shall end on the last day of
December of each year and begin on the following day.

ARTICLE II - SHAREHOLDERS' MEETING

SECTION 1. PLACE OF MEETINGS. Meetings c¢f the shareholders of the
Company shall be held at the principal cffice of the Company or at such
other place within or without the $tate of Florida as may be fixed by
the Bozrd of Directors.

SECTION 2. ANNUAL MEETING. The annual meeting of the shareholders shall
be held on the second Wednesday in October each year at two o'clock
p.m., or on such other day or at such other time as may be fixed by the
Board of Directors. The shareholders at the annual meeting shall: (i)
elect & Board of Directors; and {ii) transact such other business as
may proverly ke brought before such meeting.

SECTION 3. CHAIRMAN OF MEETING. All meetings of shareholders shall be
called to order and presided over by the Chairman of the Board or in
his absence, by the President, cr in the zbsence cof both, by the person
designated in writing by the Chairman or Fresident.

SECTION 4. DETERMINATICH OF RECORD DATES. The Board of Directors shall
fix a time, not less than ten or more than seventy days, prior to the
date of any meeting of shareholders, as a record date for the
determinaction of the shareholders entitled to notice of and to vote on
such meeting.

SECTION 5. HNOTICE TO SHAREHOLDERS. Written notice of every meeting of
the shareholders shall be given by, or at the direction of, the person
or persons authorized to call the meeting, to eachn shareholder of
record entitled to vote at the meeting: (i) at least thirty days prior
to the date fixed for the annual meeting: {ii) at least ten days prior
to the date fixed for any special meeting, unless, in either case, a
greater period of netice is required by law te be given in advance of
such particular meeting. Written notice shall be deemed to be



sufficient iLf given to the shareholder personally, or by sending a copy
thereof throvugh the mail to his address appearing on the books of the
Company, or supplied by him to the Company for the purpose of netice.
The notice required by this By-Law shall specify the place, date and
hour of the meeting, and in case of a special meeting, the general
nature of the business to be transacted.

SECTION &. NOMINATIONS AND BUSINESS AT MEETINGS. At any annual meeting
of shareholders, only persons who are nominated or business that is
proposed in accordance with the procedures set forth in this Section 6.
shall be eligible for election as Directors or considered for action by
shareholders. Neminations of persons for election to the Board of
Directors of the Company may be made or business proposed at & meeting
of shareholders {i) by or at the direction of the Board of Directors or
{ii) by any shareholder of the Company entitled to vote at the meeting
who complies with the notice and other procedures set forth in this
Section 6. Such nominations or business proposals, other than those
made by or at the direction of the Board of Directors, shall be made
pursuant to timely notice in writing to the Secretary of the Company
and such proposals must, under applicable law, be a proper matter for
shareholder action. To be timely, a shareholder's notice shall be
delivered to or mailed and received at the principal office of the
Company not less than 120 days nor more than 210 days in advance of the
date which is the anniversary of the date the Company's proxy statement
was released to shareholders in connection with the previous year's
annual meeting or if the date of the applicable annual meeting has been
changed by more than 30 days from the date contemplated at the time of
the previous year's proxy statement, not less than 90 days before the
date of the applicable annual meeting:; provided, however, that in the
avent that less than 50 days' notice or prior publiic disclosure of the
date of the meeting is given or made to shareholders, notice by the
shareholder rvo be timely must be received not later than the close of
business on the 15th day following the day on which such notice of the
date of the meeting was mailed or such public disclosure was made,
whichever first occurs. '

Such shar=holder's notice shall set forth (i) as to each person who
such shareholder proposes to nominate for electicn or reelection as a
Divector, all information relating to such person that is reguired to
he disclosed in seolicitations of proxies for elsction of directors, or
is otherwise reguired, in each case pursuant to Regulation 14A under
the Securities Exchange Act of 1834, as amended {including such
person's written conssnit to being named in the proxy statement as a
nomines and to serving as a Director if elecred}; (ii} as to any other
business that the shareholder proposes to bring before the meeting, a
brief description of the business desired te be brought before the
annual meeting, the reascons for conducting such business at the annual
meating and any material interest in such business of such person on
whose beshalf such propesal is made; and (iii) as to the shareholder
giving the notice and the beneficial owner, if any, on whose behalf the
nomination or proposal is made, (a) the name and address of such
shareholder and beneficial owner, if any, (b} the class and number of
shares of the Company which are beneficially cowned, (c) a description
of all arrangements or understandings between such shareholder and each
prcposed nominee and any cther person or persons (including their
nares) with respect to any such nomination(s}) or proposal(s) and {(d) a
regresentation that such shareholder intends to appear in person or by



proxy at the meeting to nominate the person{s) named, or move the
proposal identified, in its notice. The Company may reguire any
proposed nominee to furnish such other information as may reasonably be
required by the Company to determine the eligibility of such proposed
nomines to serve as a director of the Company. No perscon shall be
eligible for election as a Director of the Company and no business
shall be conducted at the annual meeting of shareholders, other than
those made by or at the directicn of the Board of BPirectors, unless
nominated or proposed in acccrdance with the procedures set forth in
this Section 6. The Chairman of the meeting may, if the facts warrant,
determine and declare to the meeting that a nomination or proposal was
not made in accordance with the provisions this Section & and, if he
should so determine, he shall so declare to the meeting and the
defective nomination or proposal shall be disregarded.

ARTICLE III - DIRECTORS

SECTION 1. GENERAL POWERS OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS. The business and
affairs of the Company shall be managed by its Board of Directors which
is hereby authorized and empowered to exercise all corporate powers of
the Company.

SECTION 2. QUALIFICATION AND NUMBER. The Board of Directors shall have
the power to fix the number of directors and from time to vime by

proper resoclution to increase or decrease the number thereof without a
vote of the shareholders. The initial number of Directors shall be 3.

SECTION 2. ELECTION AND TERM. ExXcept as provided in the Company's
Restated Articles of Incorporation as amended, the shareholders shall
at each annual meeting elect directors each of whom shall serve until
the annual meeting of shareholders next following his election and
until his successor is elected and shall qgualify.

SECTION 4. VACANCIES. Vacancies on the Board of Directors, including
vacancies from any increase in the number of directors, shall be filled
by a majority of thes remaining members of the Board thcough less than a
quorum, and each person so elected shall be & director until his
successor is elected by the sharehclders whe may make such =lection at
the next annual meeting of the shareheclders or at any special meeting
to be called for that purpose and held prior thereto.

SECTION 5. NOMINATION QF DIRECTORS. Candidates for election to the
Board of Directors at an annual meeting of the sharehoiders shall be
nominated at a regular or special meeting of the Board. Candidates for
such election also may be nominated by any shareholder entitled to vote
at the meeting iln accordance with Article Ii-Section 6. If any nominee
chesen by the Board shall be unwilling or unable to serve as a director
if elected, a substitute nominee shall be designated by the Board, and
announcenment of such designation shall be made at the mesting of the
shereholdars pricor te the voting upon election of directors.

SECTICHM 6. QRGANIZATION MEETING OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS. The Board of
Directors shall without notice meet each year upen adjournment of the
annual meeting of the shareholders at the principal office of the
Company, or at such other time or place as shall be designated in a
notice given to all nominees for directecr, for the purposes of
organization, fixing of times and places for regular meetings of the




Board for the ensuing year, election of officers and consideration of
any other business that may properly be brought before the meeting.

SECTION 7. REGULAR MEETINGS. Regular mestings of the Board of Directors
shall be held at such times and places as shall be fixed at the
organization meeting of the Board or as may be otherwise determined by
the Board.

SECTION 8. SPECIAL MEETINGS. Special meetings of the Beard of Directors
may be called by the Chairman ¢f the Board, the Chief Executive
Officer, the President or the Secretary and shall be called by the
Secretary, at the written request of any three directors.

SECTION 9. NOTICE OF REGULAR AND SPECIAL MEETINGS. No notice of a
regular meeting of the Board of Directors shall be necessary if the
meeting is held at the time and place fixed by the Board at its
organization meeting or at the immediately preceding Board meeting.
Notice of any regular meeting to be held at ancther time or place and
of all special meetings of the Board, setting forth the time and place
of the meeting, and in the case of a special meeting the purpose or
purposes thereof, shall be given by letter or other writing deposited
in the United States mail not later than during the third day
immediately preceding the day for such meeting, or by telephone, telex,
facsimile or other oral, written or electronic means, received not
later than during the day immediately preceding the day for such
meering or such shorter period as the psrson or persons calling such
meeting may d2em necessary or appropriate under the circumstances

SECTION 10. QUORUM. A majority of the directors in coffice shall be
necessary to constitute a guerum for the transaction of business, and
the acts of the majority of the directors present at a meeting at which
& quorum is present shall be the acts of the Beoard of Rirectors. If at
any meeting a quorum shall not be present, the meeting may adjourn from
tima to time until a guorum shall be present. Notwithstanding the
above, in the event that an even number of Directors are in office, 0%
of the total number of directors in cffice shall constitute a quorum.

SECTION 11. WRITTEN CONSENT. Any action wnhich may ke taken at & neeting
of the Board of Directers or at a meeting of the executive or other
committee as hereinafter provided may be taken without a meeting, if a
consent or consencs in writing setting forth the action so taken shall
be signad by all the directors or the membsrs of the committee, as the
case may be, and shall be filed with the Secretary of the Company.

SECTION 12. PARTICTPATION BY CONFERENCE TELEPHOME. One or more
directors may parcicipate in a meeting of the Board of Directors or of
2 committee of the Board as hereinaftar provided for by means of
conference teleghone or similar communications equipment by means of
which all persons participating in the meeting can hear each other.

SECTION 13. EXECUTIVE CCOMMITTEE. The Zoard of Directors may, by
regolution adeopred by a majority of the whoele Beoard, constitute,
abolish or reconstitute an Executive Committee of the Board as the
Board may determine, and shall include the Chief Executive Cfficer, if
any, or the President. The other members of the Executive Committes
shall be appointed and may be removed by the Board. The Chief Executive
Officer, if any, or the President shall act as Chairman of such




Committee, and in his absence, the Committee shall select one of its
members to act as Chairman. The Chairman of the Committee shall have
powsr to vote on all gquestions. The members of the Committee shall hold
office until the first meeting of the Board of Directors after the next
succeeding annual meeting of the shareholders and until their
successors are appointed.

The Board of Directors shall £ill any vacancy in the Executive
Committee, and it shall be its duty to keep the membership of such
Committee full,

The Executive Committee shall keep proper minutes and records of its
proceedings, and all actions of the Executive Committee shall be
reported to the Board of Directors at its meeting next succeeding such
actions, and when the Board is not in session the Executive Commitfee
shall have all powers and rights of the Board unless limited by a
resolution of the Board.

All gquestions shall be decided by the vote of the majority of the
members of such Committee present.

SECTION 14. OTHER COMMITTEES. The Board of Directors may, by resolution
adopted by a2 majority of the whole Board, designate one or more
committees, each committee to consist of tweo or more directors.

SECTION 15. COMPENSATION OF OFFICERS AND ASSISTANT OFFICERS. Unless
otherwise determined by resolution adopted by the majority of the
entire Board of Directors, the Chief Executive Officer of the Company
or such officer as he may designate shall have the authority to
determine, fix and change the compensation of all officers ancd
assistant officers of the Company except those which are executive
officers {as defined under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934).

ARTICLE IV - OFFICERS

SECTTON 1. NUMEER AND ELECTION. The Board of Dirvectors shall elect &

Chairman of the Board, a President, a Secretary and a Treasurer, and

may elect such other officers and assistant officers as the Board may
deem appropriate.

SECTION 2. TERM OF OFFICE. The term of office for all officers shall be
until the organization meeting of the Beoard of Directors following the
next annual meeting of shareholders or until their respective
successors are elected and shall gqualify, but any officer may ke
removed from office, either with or without cause, at any time by the
affirmative vote of the majority of the members of the Board then in
office. A vacancy in any office arising from any cause may be filled
for the unexpired term by the Beoard.

SECTION 3. CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD. The Chairmen of the Board shall
preside at all meetings of the shareholders and of the Board of
Directors at which he is present. He may be a member of any of the
committees of the Beoard.

SECTION 4. CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER. Subject to the control of the Board
of Directors, the Chief Executive Officer shall have general control
and direction of the business of the Corporation. If no person is



elected to the office of the Chief Executive Officer, the President
shall be the Chief Executive Qfficer. In addition, he shall be a member
of the Executive Committee and may be a member of the other committees
of the Board. In the absence of the Chairman, he shall have the powers
of the Chairman of the Beard.

SECTION 5. PRESIDENT. The President shall have such powers and periorm
such duties as the Board of Directors may specify. In the absence of a
Chief Executive Qfficer, the President shall be the Chief Executive
Officer and shall have general supervision over the business and
affairs of the Company and be a member of the Executive Committee and
may be a member of the other committees of the Board.

SECTION 6. SECRETARY. The Secretary shall attend meetings of the
shareholders, the Board of Directors and the Executive Committee, shall
keep minutes thereof in suitable books, and shall send out all notices
of meetings as required by law or by these Bylaws. He shall, in
general, perform all duties incident to the office of the Secretary and
perform such other duties as may be assigned to him by the Board, the
Chief Executive Officer.

SECTION 7. TREASURER. The Treasurer shall have charge and custody of
and be responsible for all funds and deposit all sums in the name of
the Company in banks, trust companies or other depositories; he shall
receive and give receipts for money due and payable to the Company from
any source whatscever, and in general shall perform all the duties
incident to the office of the Treasurer and such other duties as may be
assigned tc him by the Board of Directors, the Chief Executive Officer
or by any officer to whom the Chief Executive Qfficer has directed him
to report.

SECTION 8. OTHER OFFICERS. The powers and dutlies of other officers
shall be such as may, from time t£o time, be prescribed by the Beard of
Directors or the Chief Executive Officer.

SECTION &. DELEGATION OF DUTIES OF OFFICERS. In case of the absence of
any officer of the Company or for any other reason that the Board of
Directors may deem sufficient, the Board, or in the absence of action
by the Board, the Chief Executive Officer, or in his absence, the
Chairman of the Board, may delegate for the time being the powars and
duties of any officer to any other officer or to any director.

ARTICLE V - EXECUTION OF WRITTEN INSTRUMENTS

The Boarc of Directors shall, from time to time, designate the
offficers, employees or agents of the Company who shall have power in
its name to sign and endorse checks and other negotiable instruments,
and to borrow money for the Company and in its name To make notes or
other evidence of indebtedness. Any officer so designated by the Board
may further delegate his powers to the extent preovided in any
resolution of the Board. Unless otherwise authorized by the Roard, zll
corntracts, leases, deeds and deeds of trust, mortgages, powars of
attorney to transfer stock and all other documents reguiring the sezl
of the Company shall be executed for and on behalf ¢f the Company by
the Chairman of the Board, the President or any Vice President, and
shall be attested by the Secretary or an Assistanc Secretary.




ARTICLE VI - CERTIFICATES OF STOCK AND TRANSFERS OF STOCK

SECTION 1. FORM OF SHARE CERTIFICATES AND TRANSFER. Share certificates
representing the capital stock of the Company shall be in such form as
the Board of Directors may from time to time determine. Each
certificate shall be signed by the Chairman of the Board, the Chief
Executive Officer, the President or one of the Vice Presidents or other
officer designated by the Hoard and shall be countersigned by the
Treasurer or an Assistant Treasurer and sealed with the seal of the
Company. If such certificates of stock are signed or countersigned by a
corporate transfer agent and a corporate registrar of the Company, such
signature of the Chairman of the Board, the President or other officer,
and the countersignature ¢f the Treasurer or Assistant Treasurer, and
such seal, or any of them, may be a facsimile, engraved or printed.

SECTION 2. TRANSFER AGENT AND REGISTRAR. The Board of Directors may
appoint an incorporated bank or trust company to act as transfer agent
for the Company's capital stock with such duties and powers as may be
prescribed by the Board in the resoclutions appointing them; and an
incorporated bank or trust company to act as registrars cof the
Company's capital stock. In the event such a transfer agent has been
appcinted, a share certificate of the Company shall not be valid or
binding uniess countersigned by a transfer agent and registered before
issue by a registrar. .

SECTION 3. REGISTERED SHAREZHOLDERS. The Company shall be entitled to
treat the holder of record of any share or shares of stock as the
holder in fact thereof and acceordingly shall not be bound to recognize
any ecuitable or other claim te or interest in such share on the part
of any other person, whether or not it shall have express or other
notice thereof, save as expressly provided by the laws of Florida.

SECTION 4. LOST CERTIFICATE. Any person claiming a certificate of stock
to be losi or destroyed shall make an affidavit or affirmation of that
fact and advertise the same in such manner as the Beard of Directors
may require, and shall, iZ the directors so require, give the Company a
bond of indemnity, inform and with one or more sureties satisfactory to
the Board, whereupon a new certificate may be issusd of the same tenor
and for the same number of shares as the one alleged te be lost or
destroyed.

SECTION 5. DETERMINATION OF SHAREHOLDERS ENTITLED TO DIVIDENDS,
DISTRIBUTIONS OR RIGHTS. The Board of Directors may fix a time not more
than fifty days prior to the date fixked for the payment of any dividend
or distribuiion or the date for the allotment of rights or the date
when any change or conversion or exchange of shares will be made or go
into effect as a record date for the determination ¢f the sharenholders
entitied to receive pavment of any such dividend or distribution or to
receive any such allotment or rights or to exercise the rights in
respect to any such change, conversion or exchange of shares.

ARTICLE VII -~ LIMITATION OQF DIRECTOR LIABLLITY

Toc the fullest extent that the laws of the State of Florida, as in
effect on February 18, 2008 or as thereafier amended, permit
elimination or limitation of the ligbility of directors, no director of
the Company shall be perscnally liable for monstary damages as such for




any action taken, or any failure to take any action, as a director.
This Article shall not apply to any action filed prior to February 18,
2008, nor to any breach of performance of duty or any failure of
performance of duty by any director occurring prior to February 18,
2008. The provisions of this Article shall be deemed to be a contract
with each director of the Company who servas as such at any time while
such provisions are in effect, and each such director shall be deemed
to he serving a&s such in reliance on the provisions of this Article.
This Article shall not be amended, altered or repealed without the
affirmative vote of the holders of at least B0% of the voting power
(without consideration of the rights of any class of stock to elect
directors by a separate class) of the then cutstanding shares of
Capital stock of the Company entitled to vote in an annual election of
directors, voting together and not as separate classes, unless such
amendment, alteration or repeal is first recommended and approved by a
majority of the entire Board of Directors in which case only & majority
shareholder vote shall be required. Such affirmative vote shall be
required notwithstanding the facti that nco voie is required, or that e
lesser percentage may be specified, bylaw or in any agreement with any
national securities exchange or cotherwise. Any amendment to,
alternation, or repeal or adoption of this Article which has the effect
of increasing director liability shell operate preospectively only and
shall not have any effect with respect to any action taken, or any
failure to act, by a director prior thereto.

ARTICLE VIII - IHDEMNIFICATION

SECTION 1. Entitlement to Indemnification. The Corporation shall, to
the extent that a determination of entitlement is made pursuant To, or
to the extent that enticliement to indemnification is otherwise accorded
by, this Article, indemnify every person who was or is a director,
officer or employee of the Corperation (hereinafter referred to as the
"Indemnitee") who was cr is invcolved in any manner {including, without
limitation, as a party or a witness}), or is threatened to be made so
involved, in any threatened, pending or completed investigation, claim,
action, sult or proceading, whether civil, criminal, administrative or
investigative {including without limitation, any invest:igation, claim,
action, suit or proceeding by or in the right of the Corporation! by
reason of the fact that the Indemnitee is cor was a director, officer or
émployee of the Corporaticn, or is or was serving &t the request of the
Corporaticn as a directex, officer, employee, fiduciavy or other
representative of ancther corporation, partnership, joint venture,
trust, employee benefit plan or other entity {such investigation,
claim, action, suit or proceeding hereinafter being referred o as a
"Proceeding”)}, against any expenses and any liability actually and in
gocd faich paid or incurred by such person in connection with such
Proceeding; provided, that indemnification may be made with respect to
a Proceeding brought by an Indemnitee against the Corporation only as
provided in the last sentence of this Section 6.1. As used in this
Article, the term "expenses" shall include fees and expenses of counsel
ancd a2ll other expenses (except any liability}) and the term "liabiligy"
shell include amounts of judgments, fines or penalties and amounts paid
in settlement. Indemnification may be made under this Article for
expenses incurred in connection with any Proceeding brought by an
Indennitee zgainst the Corporation only if (i) the Proceeding is a
claim for indemnificaticon under this Article or otherwise, (2) the
Indemnitees is successful in whole or in part in the Proceeding for




which expenses are claimed, or (3) the indemnification for expenses is
included in a setilement of, or is awarded by a court in, a Proceeding
to which the Corporation is a party.

SECTYON 2. Advancement of Expenses. ALl expenses incurred in good faith
by or on behalf of the Indemnitee with respect to any Proceeding shall,
upon written regquest submitted to the Secretary of the Corporation, he
advanced to the Indemnitee by the Corporation prior to final
disposition of such Proceeding, subject to any obligation which may be
imposed by law or by provision in the Articles, bylaws, an agreement or
otherwise to repay the Corporation in certain events.

SECTION 3. Indemnification Procedure.

{a) To obtain indemnification under this Article, an Indemnitee shail
submit to the Secretary of the Corporation a written reguest, including
such supporting documentation as is reasonably available to the
Indemnitee and reasonably necessary to the meking of a determination of
whether and to what extent the Indemnitee is entitled to
indemnification. The Secretary of the Corporation shall promptly
thereupen advise the General Counsel in writing of such reguest.

{b) The Indemnitee's entitlement to indemnification shall be
determined by a Referee (selected as hereinafter provided) in a written
opinion. The Referee shall find the Indemnitee entitled to
indemnification unless the Referee finds that the Indemnitee's conduct
was such that, if so found by a court, indemnification would be
prohibited by Florida law.

{c} "Referee" means an attorney with substantisl expertise in
corporate law who neither presently is, nor in the past five years has
been, retained to represent: (i} the Corporation or the Indemnitee, or
an affiliate of either of them, in any matter material to either such
party, except to act as a Referee in similar proceedings, or (ii} any
other party to the Proceeding giving rise teo a claim feor
indemnification under this Article. The Corporatcion's General Counsel,
if Disinterested (as hereinafter defined), or if not, the Corporation's
senicr officer who is Disinterested, shall prcpose a Referees. The
Secretary of the Corporation shall notify the Indemnitee of the name of
the Referse propcsed, whose appointment shall become final unless the
Indemnitee, within 10 days of such notice, reasonably obiectis to such
Referee as not being gualified, independent or unbiased. If the
Corporation and the Indemnitee cannot agres on the selection of a
Referes, or if the Corporation fails to propose a Referes, within 45
days of the submission of a written reguest for indemnification, the
Referee shall be selected by the American Arbitration Asscciation., The
General Counsel or a senior officer shall be deemed Disinterested if
not a party to the Proceeding and not alleged in the pleadings as to
the Proceeding to have participated in the action, or participated in
the failure to act, which is the basis for the relief sought in the
Proceeding.

(d) Notwithstanding any other provision ¢f this Article, To the extent
that there has been a determination by a court as Lo the conduct of an
Incdemnitee such that indemnification would not be prohibited by Florida
law, or if an Indemnitee would be entitled by Florida law to



indemnification, the Indemnitee shall ke entitled to indemnification
hereunder.

{e} A determination under this Section 3 shall be conclusive and
binding on the Company but not on the Indemnitee.

SECTION 4. Partial Indemnification. If an Indemnitee is entitled under
any provision of this Article to indemnification by the Corporation of
a portion, but not all, of the expenses or liability resulting from a
Proceeding, the Corporation shall nevertheless indemnify the Indemnitee
for the portion therecf to which the Indemnitee is entitled.

SECTION 5. Insurance. The Corporation may purchase and maintain
insurance to protect itself and any Indemnitee against expenses and
liahility asserted or incurred by any Indemnitee in connection with any
Proceeding, whether or not the Corporation would have the power to
indemnify such person against such expense or liability by law, under
an agreement or under this Article. The Corporation may create a trust
fund, grant a security interest or use other means (including, without
limitation, a letter of credit) to ensure the payment of such amounts
as may be necessary to effect indemnification.

SECTICN 6. Agreements. The Corporation may enter into agreements with
any director, officer or employee of the Corporation, which agreements
may grant rights to the Indemnitee or create obligations of the
Corporation in furtherance of, different from, or in addition teo, but
not in limitation of, those provided in this Article, without
shareholder approval of any such agreement. Without limitation of the
foregoing, the Corporation may obligate itself (1) te maintain
insurance cn behalf of the Indemnitee against certain expenses and
liabilities and {2) to contribute to expenses and liabilities incurrad
by the Indemnitee in accordance with the application of relevant
equitable considerations to the relative benefits to, and the relative
fault of, the Corporation.

SECTION 7. Miscellaneous. The entitlement to indemnification and
advancement of expenses provided for in this Article (1} shall ba a
contract right, (2) shall not be exclusive of any other rights to which
an Indennitee may otherwise be entitled under any Arcicle, bylaw,
agreement, vote of shareholders or directors or otherwise, {3) shall
continue as to a person who has ceased to be a director, cificer or
employes and (4) shall inure to the benefit of the heirs and legal
represantatives of any perscn entitled to indemnification or
advancenent of expenses under this Article.

SECTION 8. Constructicon. If any provision of this Article shall be heid
to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable for any reason (1} such
provisicn shall be invalid, illegal or unenforceable only to the extent
of such prohibirion and the validity, legality and enforceability of ’
the remaining provisions of this Arcticle shall net in any way be
affected or impaired therzby, and (2) to the fullest extent possible,
the remaining provisicns c¢f this Article shall be censtrued so as to
give effect to the intent manifested by the provisicn held invalid,
illegal or unenforceable. .

SECTIOM &. Effectiveness. This Article shall apply to every Proceeding
other than a Proceeding filed prior to February 18, 2008, except that



it shall not apply to the extent that Florida law does not permit its
applicaticn to any breach of performance of duty or any failure of
performance of duty by an Indemnitee occcurring prior to February 18,
2008.

SECTION 10. Amendment. This Article may be amended or repealed at any
time in the future by vote of the directors without shareholder
approval; provided, that any amendment or repeal, or adoption of any
Article of the Restated Articles or any other bylaw of the Corporation,
which has the effect of limiting the rights granted to directors under
this Article, shall require the affirmative vote of at least BO% of the
votilng power of the then cutstanding shares of capital stock of the
Corporation entitled to wvete in an annual election of directers, voting
together as a single class. Any amendment or repeal, or such Article or
other bylaw, limiting the rights granted under this Article shall
operate prospectively only, and shall not limit in any way the
indamnification provided for herein with respect to any acticn taken,
or failure to act, by an Indemnitee prior thereto.

ARTICLE IX - BYLAWS SUBJECT TO PROVISIONS OF ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION

In case of any conflict between the provisions of these Bylaws and the
Company's Restated Articles of Incorporation as amended from time to
time, the provisions of the Articles of Incorporaticn shall control,
and with respect to any provisions required to be set forth in the
Bylaws, the applicable provisions of the Articles of Incerporation are
and shall pe incorpoerated herein by reference and shall be deemed a
part of these Bylaws.

ARTICLE X - AMENDMENTS

Exzcept as otherwise provided in Articles VII and VIII, these Bylaws may
be altered, amended, added to or repealed by the Board of Directors at
any meeting of the Board duly convened with or witheout notice of that
purpose, subject to the power ¢f the shareholders to change such
action.



COHEN & CZARNIK LLP
17 Sate Sueet
39 Floor
New York, New York 10004

February 13, 2008

VERGE PRODUCTIONS, INC.
2881 E. Qakland Park Bivd., Suite 214
Ft. Lauderdale, FL 33306
Adftention: Mrs. Lesley Elliott
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Re: Offering Statement on Form 1-A

Ladies and Gentlemen:

We have acted as special counsel to VERGE PRODUCTIONS, INC. {the "Company"} in
connection with a offering statement on Form 1-A {the "Qffering Statement”), filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, relating to
the offering by the Company of an aggregate of 5,000,000 shares of common stock, no par value
per share, of the Company (the "Shares”).

In connection with the foregoing, we have examined originals or copies, satisfactory to
us, of all such corporate records and of all such agreements, certificates and other documents as
we have deemed relevant and necessary as a basis for the opinion hereinafter expressed. In
such examination, we have assumed the genuineness of all signatures, the authenticity of all
documents submitted to us as originals and the conformity with the original documents of all
documents submitted to us as copies. As to any facts material to such opinion, we have, without
independent investigation, relied on certificates of public officials and certificates of officers or
other representatives of the Company.

Based upon the foregeoing and subject to the other limitations set forth herein, we are of
the opinion that the Shares o be offered and sold pursuant to the Offering Statement will be
validly issued, fully paid and non-assessable upon issuance pursuant to the terms of the Offering
Statement.

We are members of the bar of the State of New York and are not licensed or admitted
to practice law in any other jurisdiction. Accordingly, we express no opinion with respect to the
laws of any jurisdiction other than the laws of the State of New York, the State of Florida including
the statutory provisions, all applicable provisions of the Florida Constitution and all reported
judicial decisions interpreting those laws, and the federal laws of the United States.
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We assume no obligation to advise you of any changes to this opinion which may

come to our attention after the date hereof. This opinion may not be relied upon or furnished to
any other person except the addressee hereof without the express written consent of this firm.

Very truly yours,

\($® -




